AGENDA
SPECIAL MEETING
GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Please note alternative meeting Jocation and time:

GEORGETOWN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL
6530 WENTWORTH SPRINGS, GEORGETOWN, CALIFORNIA

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 24, 2017
5:30 P.M.

MISSION STATEMENT

It is the purpose of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District to:
e Provide reliable water supplies
Ensure high quality drinking water
Promote stewardship to protect community resources, public health and quality of life
Provide excellent and responsive customer services through dedicated and valued staff
Ensure fiscal responsibility and accountability are observed by balancing immediate and long term needs

1. CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL, AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

2. ADOPTION OF AGENDA

3. PUBLIC FORUM - Any member of the public may address the Board on any matter within the
jurisdictional authority of the District. Public members desiring to provide comments must be recognized
by the Board President, and speak from the podium. Comments must be directed only to the Board. The
public should address the Board members during the public meetings as President, Vice President, or
Director followed by the Board member’s individual last name. The Board will hear communications on
matters not on the agenda, but no action will be taken. No disruptive conduct shall be permitted at any
Board meeting. Persistence in disruptive conduct shall be grounds for summary termination, by the
President, of that person's privilege of address.

4. CONSENT CALENDAR - Approve Minutes of Special Meeting of October 18, 2017

5. REVIEW RATE STUDY FINAL REPORT AND ADOPT RESOLUTION 2017-27 - NOTICE OF
A PUBLIC HEARING PURSUANT TO PROPOSITION 218

Possible Board Action: Adopt Resolution 2017-27 authorizing the General Manager to prepare and
deliver a notice of a public hearing pursuant to Proposition 218.

6. NEXT MEETING DATE AND ADJOURNMENT - The next regular meeting will be November 14,
2017, at 2:00 PM, at the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District office.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a disabled person and you need a disability-
related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact Steven Palmer by telephone
at 530-333-4356 or by fax at 530-333-9442. Requests must be made as early as possible and at least one-full
business day before the start of the meeting. In accordance with Government Code Section 54954.2(a), this agenda
was posted on the District’s bulletin board at the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District office, at 6425 Main
Street, Georgetown, California, on October 20, 2017.

%@/ ;u/?o/f?—

Steven Palmer, PE, General Manager Date

GDPUD Special Meeting Agenda, October 24, 2017 Page 1 of 1



GDPUD Special Board Meeting of
10/24/2017
AGENDA ITEM NO. 4

CONFORMED AGENDA
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING WORKSHOP
GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Please note alternative meeting location and time:

NORTHSIDE SCHOOL GYM
860 Cave Valley Road, Cool, CA 95614
WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 18, 2017
5:30 P.M.

MISSION STATEMENT

It is the purpose of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District to:

e Provide reliable water supplies

e Ensure high quality drinking water

e Promote stewardship to protect community resources, public health, and quality of life

e Provide excellent and responsive customer services through dedicated and valued staff

e Ensure fiscal responsibility and accountability are observed by balancing immediate and long-term needs.

1. CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL, AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The meeting was called to order 5:30 PM

Roll Call:
Directors Present: David Halpin, Lon Uso, Dane Wadle
Directors Absent: Jesse Hanschild and Carl Hoelscher

Staff: General Manager Steve Palmer; Board Assistant Gloria Omania
Legal Counsel: Robin Baral, Churchwell White
Consultant: John Van den Berg, Rural Development Specialist, RCAC

Director Uso welcomed and thanked those in attendance. He then announced the ground rules
for an orderly meeting.

2. ADOPTION OF AGENDA
Motion by Director Wadle to approve the agenda; Second by Director Halpin.
Public Comment: None

Vote:
Ayes: Halpin, Uso, Wadle
Noes:
Absent: Hanschild, Hoelscher

The motion passed.

3. PUBLIC FORUM - Any member of the public may address the Board on any matter within the
jurisdictional authority of the District. Public members desiring to provide comments, must be
recognized by the Board President, and speak from the podium. Comments must be directed
only to the Board. The public should address the Board members during the public meetings as
President, Vice President, or Director, followed by the Board member’s individual last name. The
Board will hear communications on matters not on the agenda, but no action will be taken.

GDPUD Special Meeting Conformed Agenda, October 18, 2017 Page 1 of 3



No disruptive conduct shall be permitted at any Board meeting. Persistence in disruptive conduct
shall be grounds for summary termination, by the President, of that person's privilege of address.

Ray Kringel asked why only three members were present for this important meeting. Director Uso
stated that Director Hoelscher will be moving out of the district and submitted his resignation on
October 17, as of 4 PM. Director Hanschild isill.

4. CONSENT CALENDAR - Approve Minutes of Regular Meeting of October 10, 2017
Motion by Director Halpin to approve the minutes. Second by Director Wadle.

Vote:
Ayes: Halpin, Uso, Wadle
Noes:
Absent: Hanschild, Hoelscher

The motion passed.

5. REVIEW WATER RATE STUDY CALCULATIONS AND INPUT FROM COMMUNITY
WORKSHOP #2

Possible Board Action: Review the information presented and provide direction regarding the
preparation of the final rate study report.

General Manager Steve Palmer used a power point presentation to supplement his written staff

report. He summarized the Prop 218 rate study public process that began last April with the meeting
of the Finance Committee and described where the District is now and what is ahead.

October 18

Board

Workshop

g o Ny o o Ny \d H_

Mr. Palmer then introduced John Van den Bergh, Rural Development Specialist with the Rural
Community Assistance Corporation, who has been providing valuable consulting services during
this rate study process at no cost to the District.

Mr. Van den Bergh continued with the power point presentation to explain how the rates were
calculated and the scenarios that were developed with community input from the two public
workshops.

After the presentations, the Board directed their questions to the General Manager and the
Consultant.

Public Comments:

The following individuals submitted speaker cards and commented: Linnea Marenco, Mike Baker,
Wendell Smith, Ray Kringel, Steve Booth John Duarte, Bill Threlkel, Carolyn Loomis, Ron Wokfeld
(on behalf of the Rural County Coalition), Amy Parkko, and Cherie Carlyon. Cindy Garcia submitted
written comments.

GDPUD Special Meeting Conformed Agenda, October 18, 2017 Page 2 of 3



The comments and discussion is summarized below:
e The process does not provide adequate time for the public to request information and
provide input.
The proposed irrigation rate is not sustainable.
Consider impact on commercial agriculture.
How many other analysts have looked at these humbers?
Would Board consider creating a separate water system?
No question that a rate increase is needed.
There should be two votes: irrigation and treated and ballots should be included with water
bills.
There should be no base rate.
Rate increase should probably have to double.
The report over-allocates and over-estimates the need to replace dirt ditches.
Service to irrigation customers is for five months out of the year.
What about a discount for seniors and low-income customers?
The rates are too high because the District is trying to build reserves over a short period of
time.
Stretch it out to 7, or even 10 years, to make the impact on ratepayers less severe.
The capital improvement budget is what’s driving these increases.
The high base rate will greatly affect the individual users.
Customers can go back to wells so District could lose customers.
Expand public outreach by increasing number of people on email list and posting information
on the Facebook page for “What’s Happening on the Divide.”

Director Uso brought the matter back to the Board. After additional discussion and questions
posed to the General Manager, the Consultant and Legal Counsel, the Board directed Staff to:

¢ Look at using the ad valorem to fund Administrative costs of $1.2 M.

¢ Allocate a portion of the ad valorem balance for a low income assistance program to subsidize
some of the increase ($35,000) and the remainder to assist with the irrigation enterprise.

¢ Stretch the schedule for funding capital replacement projects from 5 years to at least 10 years.

¢ Review the capital replacement schedule.

6. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS, REQUESTS FOR ADDITIONS TO FUTURE MEETING
AGENDAS AND REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION OR RESEARCH TO BE COMPLETED BY
STAFF — Opportunity for Board members to discuss matters of interest to them and provide input
for future meetings as well as report on their District-related meeting attendance.

7. NEXT MEETING DATE AND ADJOURNMENT — Next regular meeting November 14, 2017, at
2:00 PM, at the DISTRICT OFFICE.

The meeting was adjourned at 8:16 PM to a Special Meeting of the GDPUD to October 24, at
5:30 PM.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a disabled person and you need a disability-related
modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact Steve Palmer by telephone at 530-
333-4356 or by fax at 530-333-9442. Requests must be made as early as possible and at least one-full business
day before the start of the meeting. In accordance with Government Code Section 54954.2(a), this agenda was
posted on the District’s bulletin board at the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District office, at 6425 Main Street,
Georgetown, California, on October 17, 2017.

Steven Palmer, PE, General Manager Date

GDPUD Special Meeting Conformed Agenda, October 18, 2017 Page 3 of 3



REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BOARD MEETING OF OCTOBER 24, 2017 _

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5 ‘

AGENDA SECTION: NEW BUSINESS

SUBJECT: REVIEW WATER RATE STUDY AND AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL
MANAGER TO PREPARE AND DELIVER NOTICE OF A PUBLIC
HEARING PURSUANT TO PROPOSITION 218

PREPARED BY: Steven Palmer, PE, General Manager
APPROVED BY: Steven Palmer, PE, General Manager
BACKGROUND

Current treated water and irrigation water rates were last reviewed and updated in 2008. That 2008 review
and update included a 5-year schedule of proposed rates for 2009 to 2013. The District did not adopt the
rate increase for 2012 to 2013, and only adopted increases for 2009, 2010, and 2011. Rates have therefore
remained unchanged since July 1, 2011. The 2008 cost of service study and resolutions adopting the rates
are included as Attachment 1. If the recommended rates for 2012 and 2013 had been adopted, the treated
water base rate would have been $52.98 and the irrigation water rate for one miner’s inch for one season
would have been $440. Instead, the current rates are at the 2011 rate of $47.14 base rate for treated water,
and $363.70 for one miner’s inch for one season. It is considered best practice to evaluate water rates
every three to five years.

Additionally, in 2015 the court ruled in Capistrano Taxpayer Association Inc. v. City of San Juan Capistrano
that usage rate tiers must be based on the cost to provide service for each rate tier. The District must
update its’ rates to comply with this court decision or risk facing a significant legal challenge.

At the September 27, 2016 Board Meeting, the District initiated the process to enlist Rural Community
Assistance Corporation (RCAC) to perform a water rate study. RCAC receives funding from the State to
help communities like the District to stay in compliance with regulations. The purpose of the work by RCAC
and the Rate Study is to determine the level of revenue required to adequately fund the treated and irrigation
water systems while providing customers with safe and reliable water that meets State and Federal
requirements.

On April 25, 2017, Staff and RCAC provided the District Finance Committee with a presentation regarding
the methodology being followed for the current rate study and requested input regarding several policy
related decisions. The policy questions discussed at the April 25, 2017 Finance Committee meeting were:
subsidy program for low income customers, capital reserve fund balance, non-operating revenue/property
tax allocation, rate tiers, quantity of water included in the base rate, and functional cost allocation.

Georgetown Divide Public Utility District 4 6425 Main Street, Georgetown, CA 95634 4 (530) 333-4356 4 gd-pud.org



REVIEW WATER RATE STUDY AND AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO PREPARE

AND DELIVER NOTICE OF A PUBLIC HEARING PURSUANT TO PROPOSITION 218 Page 2
Special Board Meeting of October 24, 2017

Agenda Item #5

On May 8, 2017 Staff presented the above listed information from the Finance Committee meeting to the
Board to obtain Board concurrence on moving forward with this methodology for the Rate Study. By motion
action, the Board provided the following direction:

o Follow the Finance Committee recommendation to minimize staff time to administer the
subsidy program;
e Make the following assumptions for the recapitalization program:
o Exclude costs less than $5,000;
o 100% cash for improvements under $50,000
o 75% cash for improvements between $50,000 and $100,000
o 50% cash for improvements between $100,000 and $500,000
o 25% cash for improvements over $500,000 (this was revised to 5% cash)
¢ Exclude hydro revenue from the operating budget and rate calculation.

At a Special Meeting of the Board of Directors on August 22, 2017, the Board approved an outreach
approach for the water rate study consisting of two public workshops, one Board meeting workshop, one
Board meeting to authorize the 45-day public hearing, and one Board meeting to hold the public hearing
required to adopt the rates.

Public Workshop #1 was held at 5:30pm on September 18, 2017 at the Georgetown Elementary School.
The presentation and the input from that meeting were presented at the Board Meeting on October 3, 2017.

Public Workshop #2 was held at 5:30pm on October 12, 2017 at the Cool Community Hall. At that meeting,
Staff received direction from the Board to make the following changes to the rate study calculations and
prepare a Rate Study report for review and possible approval at a Special Board Meeting on October 24,
2017:

o Allocate property tax revenue to cover all administration costs (Department 5600), allocate
$35,000 for a low-income rate assistance program, and allocate remainder to irrigation water
capital reserves;

¢ Review and revise capital replacement schedule; and

e Achieve a balanced budget for operating and capital reserves in 10 years instead of 5 years.

DISCUSSION

Based on input received, direction from the Board, and sound financial and best government practices,
RCAC has prepared the attached Rate Study for review by the Board. The Rate Study provides an
explanation and justification of the calculated treated and irrigation water rates for five years, and
documents compliance with laws and regulations.

FISCAL IMPACT

This item is informational and does not have a direct impact on this year’s operating or capital budget.

Completing the water rate study update has a significant impact on the District’s finances. The Draft Long
Range Financial Forecast that was presented by the General Manager at the April 18, 2017 Board Meeting
illustrates that total District revenue has decreased since 2009. Operating expenses are forecast to exceed
future revenue projections by significant and ever-increasing amounts, reaching over $300,000 annually
within three years.

The Draft Long Range Financial Forecast and a recent proforma prepared by a lender, show that the
District’'s debt-service coverage ratio will decrease to 1.0 in 2020. The debt-service coverage ratio is the



REVIEW WATER RATE STUDY AND AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO PREPARE

AND DELIVER NOTICE OF A PUBLIC HEARING PURSUANT TO PROPOSITION 218 Page 3
Special Board Meeting of October 24, 2017

Agenda Item #5

ratio of net operating income to debt service. Lenders require a minimum ratio of 1.20 to qualify for loan
programs. The District’s water rates are too low to qualify for loans.

RCAC calculates the current water affordability for the District as 1.25%. In other words, the average water
bill in the District is 1.25% of the median household income. In order to qualify for State and Federal grants,
the District must maintain an affordability index ranging between 1.5% and 4.0%. The District’s water rates
are too low to qualify for State and Federal grants.

Additionally, the District is not currently setting aside enough funds to fund capital replacement costs.
Current restricted reserves total $4.5M, and unrestricted reserves total $5.5M. While this is adequate to
fund required debt service accounts, it does not allow enough funds to repair or replace aging infrastructure.

Updating the rates is necessary for the future sustainability of the District. Rates must be updated to
account for years of inflation since 2011, reduction in revenue due to water conservation, elimination of
tiered water rates, and to set aside adequate funding to replace capital infrastructure. If rates are not
updated, initially the District will be forced to draw from reserves to fund operating expenses and to defer
much needed capital improvements and replacements. Once reserves are depleted the District will be
unable to pay its bills and obligation. Ultimately, this lack of keeping rates current will result in pressure
from the State to consolidate with a neighboring district, and could result in the State taking over the assets
and obligations of the District.

CEQA ASSESSMENT

This water rate study is statutorily exempt from CEQA pursuant to California Code of Regulations Section
15273 because it is for:

(1) Meeting operating expenses, including employee wage rates and fringe benefits,

(2) Purchasing or leasing supplies, equipment, or materials,

(3) Meeting financial reserve needs and requirements, and

(4) Obtaining funds for capital projects, necessary to maintain service within existing service areas.

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Staff recommends the Board of Directors of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District (GDPUD) review
the Rate Study and adopt a resolution authorizing the General Manager to prepare and deliver notice of a
public hearing pursuant to Proposition 218.

ALTERNATIVES

The Board of Directors may direct the General Manager and Consultant to revise the Water Rate Study for
review at a future Board meeting.

ATTACHMENTS

1. 2017 Water Rate Study
2. Resolution 2017-27




GDPUD Special Board Meeting of
10/24/2017
AGENDA ITEM NO. 5
Attachment 1

Treated Water Rate Study prepared for the

Georgetown Divide PUD,

at the request of the State Water Resources Control Board




Table of Contents

1.

GEOrgetOWN DIVIAE PUD ....ooiiiciiie ettt et e et e e e e tte e e s e bt e e e e eabtaeeeenbteeeeensteeeesaseeeeennsens 3
(] 0.1 02 18] 1177 3
D1y o g o SOOI 3
LOLT 1Sy o0 =T (PP O PP 4
CUITENT RATES .ottt a e e s ba s e s s rae e s s anas 4
[ UT oY o= o o T T o o RS 5
(D1 Eol 114 =] S TP PRSP PPTRPRRRPRPRON 5
Guiding Principles of this Rate StUY ......c.ueiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e ree e s e 6
VTS = 1R T o111 SRR 6
- 11 SOOI 6
JUSTIFIADIE ettt b et s bt st e et e bt e b e sheesaeeeare e 6
UL o Yo LYoo o o L UL | S 7
THE MOEI ..t b e s he e sttt e b e e b e s bt e s bt e s ae e et e et e e nbeesbeesaeesaeesaneeane 7
BOAId DECISION «.eeeinitieeiie et ettt ettt ee ettt e ettt esabe e s bt e e s bt e e bt e sabee s beeesabeesabeesnbeesabeesabbeesabeeeneeenareens 7
2 oI (U Lo AV o o Yo TR 8
Capital ReplacemeENnt PrOZram .....ccciiie ittt ettt e e e e s e e e e s e ate e e e ette e e s eatee e e enneeeeeeanees 10
SOUICE Of the Data .ottt et sh e st st e b e b e bt e s mee st e et e ebeeneeens 10
SPIT CriterIa OF ASSELS .eiiiiiiiei ittt e et e e e ete e e e et e e e seatee e e seataeeeeentaeeeeestaseesantasaeeansenaennns 10
Life EXPECLANCY Of ASSEES .iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e e e e e e e et ee e e e abaeeeesabeeeeesaseeeessaseeeesnnsees 13
Yo 10T ol=T o U o Yo [T =PSRN 13
EXISTING RESEIVES ....etiiiiiiiiiiiiitte ettt e e e s ettt et e e e s e sttt e e e e e s sasatbbaeeeeesssasassbaaeeeesssassnsasaeeesssansnses 14
Description of EXNibit 2T @nd Ll......eoiiieciiiieciiee ettt et e e e bre e e e earee e e s e bae e e e eanreeeeennees 14
AEEINATIVE ..ttt b e s bt e she e s at e ettt e e bt e b e e s be e eaeeeae e et e e be e beenree s 14
20T P RSP ST 15
Board Member Analysis Request (BOard SCENAKIO) .....cueeivieeecieeeiieeeiieecteeeiee e e sveeerre s teeeaaeeeaeeas 15
ANalysis Of the BOArd SCENATIO.......cccuviiiiie ettt ettt ee e crre e e e e e eeesabareeeeeseeesasrsaaeeeeseeennnes 15
SOUICE OFf DATA -eeereeiieiei ettt et e s e s st st s b e r e n e e s e s e e e n e r e nne e 15
RESEIVE FUNGING.....uiiieiiiiiiciiiieee ettt e e e et e e e e e e e s st a e e e e e e ses s staeeeeeessannsstaneeeeeesannsesnneeessennnes 16
AllOCAtION OF PrOPEITY TAXES ..ccuvieeeieiieeeeeitieeeeetteeeeetteeeeeteeeeseteeeeseseseesesseseesasasaeeansasaesansasassanseneesns 18
Reserve Accounting and Investment OpPortUNities.....ccceecciieeieciiee e e 19
RAtE CalCUITION ..ottt ettt e et e s be e e s b e e s b e e e sateesaneeenneas 20

Georgetown Divide PUD Water Rate Study: Prepared by RCAC Page 1



Y S = To =T (e I Yol=1 o F={ o (o TN 21

B.  ReCOMMENAEA SCENAIIO ..cuveieiiieitee ettt ettt sttt et e st et e e st e s nee e sabeeeabeeesmneesneeesneeas 24

C.  DiSCUSSION Of SCENAIIOS ..c.uviiutieiieitieriieete ettt ettt sttt r et b e s bt e st et e bt e bt e beesbeesaeesanesaneeane 28

R 1= 4 ) {= o F 29
] =T ] Tl o o T RSP URR 29

[ LT [T = SO T PP P P PP PPPO O PPPRPPPPPPPRROt 30

[aaY o1 [T a0 =T 1 - 14 e o NP PP 30

8. EXNIDIES et ettt e b e h e bttt e bt ebe e bt e beesheesaaesabeereenne 31

Georgetown Divide PUD Water Rate Study: Prepared by RCAC Page 2



1. Georgetown Divide PUD

Community

Georgetown is an unincorporated community in El Dorado County, CA. It is the northeastern-most town
in the California Mother Lode. The population was 2,367 at the 2010 census, up from 1962 in 2000. The
town is registered as California Historical Landmark #484.

The official Median Household Income (MHI) for Georgetown is estimated by the American Community
Survey (2014) to be $46,136, +/- $17,670 variance. The MHI for the service area is estimated at $66,359.

Georgetown is about 20 miles and 30 minutes East of Auburn, CA.

The Georgetown Divide is located between the Middle and South Forks of the American River, nestled in
the heart of the Sierra Nevada Foothills and Northern California’s Gold Country. Access is through Hwy
50 and Hwy 80, making it in close proximity to either metropolitan cities or recreational activities of Lake
Tahoe.

District

The Georgetown Divide Public Utility District, as we know it today, was formed on June 4, 1946.
However the origins of District facilities can be traced back to 1852 and the El Dorado, Pilot and Rock
Creek Canal Companies, one of the first established water purveyors in the State of California — a not
inconsequential result of James Marshall’s discovery of gold in nearby Coloma. Following the decline in
gold production, agriculture and lumbering became the staple industries on the Divide for many years.

In recent decades, several vineyards have increased the demand for irrigation water.

Georgetown Divide PUD Water Rate Study: Prepared by RCAC Page 3



The focus of the District water supply system is the Stumpy Meadows Reservoir, a 20,000 acre - foot
impoundment on Pilot Creek, at the eastern edge of the District.

The District provide treated water, irrigation water and sewer services to the community. Not all three
services are provided in all areas.

Areas services extend as far west as Cool and as far south as Pilot Hill. (See map.)

This District has an elected five-member Board, which sets policy and oversees a General Manager (GM).
Board members do not, and should not, actively participate in the management of the District.

The Board meets monthly.

The District last reviewed and updated its treated water and irrigation rates in 2008. As a result,
operational costs and replacement costs for capital facilities are exceeding annual revenue, and
additional capital improvement needs are being deferred. It is considered best practice to evaluate
water rates every three to five years.

Customers
The District has 3,774 treated water customers who are billed bi-monthly.

Meter | Number of
Size Meters
A C
5/8" 3117
3/4" 421
1" 198
1.5" 28
2" 10
3" 0
4" 4
6" 0
Total 3774

In addition, there are 408 irrigation customers.

Current Rates
Base Rate for treated water is the same for all meter sizes, with the exception of the four 4” meters.

Existing
Meter Base
Size Rate
5/8" $47.14
3/4" S47.14

Georgetown Divide PUD Water Rate Study: Prepared by RCAC Page 4



1" $47.14
1.5" $47.14
2" $47.14
3" $47.14
4" $50.32
6" $50.32

Usage Charges are currently tiered and vary from $1.28 to $2.21 per 100 CF. 2000CF is included in the
Base Rate.

Irrigation customers pay $363.70 per miner’s inch, per season.

The District’s rate schedule includes connection fees, transfer fees, late charges, etc. This rate study
does not include an analysis of these charges.

Funding of this report

This rate study covers both the treated water and the irrigation water services and is made available at
no charge to the District. This report was prepared using funds under Agreement 13-409-550 between
RCAC and the California State Water Resources Control Board.

Disclaimer

The recommendations contained in this rate study are based on financial information provided to RCAC
by the District. Although every effort was made to assure the reliability of this information, no warranty
is expressed or implied as to the correctness, accuracy or completeness of the information contained
herein.

Any opinions, findings, and conclusions or recommendations expressed in this material are solely the
responsibility of the authors and do not necessarily represent the official views of the California State
Water Resources Control Board.

For accounting advice, a CPA should be consulted. For legal advice, the District should seek the advice of
an attorney.

- ]
Georgetown Divide PUD Water Rate Study: Prepared by RCAC Page 5



2. Guiding Principles of this Rate Study

RCAC’s rate studies comply with AWWA guidelines, unless California regulations, mainly Prop 218,
require a deviation from national standards.

Sustainability
Rates should cover the costs to the system to allow it to provide services now, and in the foreseeable
future. It is the responsibility of the Board to set rates to a level where the system is sustainable.

Fair

Rates should be fair to all rate payers. No single rate payer or group of rate payers should be singled out
for different rates. Therefore, the proposed treated water rates do not make any distinction between
domestic, commercial, industrial or agricultural users. The rates are the same for all types of customers.

The District should not charge more for treated water than the cost to provide the service. However,
the costs should include: operations, repairs, interest, loan principal, and all other costs related to the
collection, treatment and distribution, now and in the foreseeable future.

Unreasonably low rates for current customers will require unreasonably high rates for future customers,
which should be avoided.

To avoid any possibility of treated water customers subsidizing irrigation customers, or vice versa, RCAC
has split the assets, budgets, reserves and debts between treated water and irrigation customers.

Justifiable

Water rates must be based on actual needs of the District. Revenue generated from treated water rates
can’t be used for anything else but to pay for the costs of collecting, treating and distribution of water
within its service area, plus administrative costs.

Similarly, revenue generate from irrigation water rates can’t be used for anything else but to pay for the
cost associated with that service.

However, subsidies to either treated or irrigation water, not funded by rate payers, but from outside
sources (i.e. property taxes, hydro revenue, etc.), can be allocated to either class of service at the
discretion of the board.

Prop 218! requires the justification of the tier level and the amount charged for each tier. This rate
study does not provide the cost justification for any tiered Usage Charges, and proposes the elimination
of a tiered Usage Rate. As a result, volumetric charges per cubic foot of treated water will be the same
per cubic foot, regardless of usage.

1 Article XIll D, Section 6 of the California Constitution

Georgetown Divide PUD Water Rate Study: Prepared by RCAC Page 6



Purpose of this study
The purposes of this study are:

e Ensure the financial strength of the district well into the future,

e Expose the need to set reserves aside for future replacement of failing components,
e Allocate shared costs between treated water and irrigation water customers,

e Identify any other financial deficiencies of the district.

The Model

RCAC uses an Excel rate setting model developed over many years of practice. It has been used in more
than 60 rate studies throughout the western United States. It is geared towards RCAC’s clients, which
are communities of less than 10,000 people.

The origins lay in CIP and Budget forms published by the California State Water Resources Control
Board, Office of Financial Assistance. The forms were integrated and enhanced to comply with AWWA
standards, regulation and recent legal cases.

Board Decision

While this document recommends certain rates, the ultimate decision rests with the district’s Board.
However, the Board has a fiduciary responsibility to set the rates at such a level that the District will be
able to continue to operate in the future, including providing funds to replace all parts of the system as
they wear out.

At a special board meeting of October 18 2017, the board reviewed the proposed rates, adjusted the
proposed rates, to arrive at the rates presented in this report. The final rates may only be adopted after
a 45-day notice of the proposed rate increase is provided in accordance with Prop 218, and a successful
Prop 218 public hearing is conducted, as provided in the notice.

Georgetown Divide PUD Water Rate Study: Prepared by RCAC Page 7



3. Rate Study Process

The figure? below explains the process of setting rates. This process is based on AWWA standards as
described in “Principles of Water Rates, Fees and Charges (M1), AWWA, Sixth Edition, 2012”. In Griffith
v. Pajaro Valley Water Management Agency, the court clarified that the AWWA standards, described in
their M1 manual comply with the proportionality requirements of Article Xlll D, Section 6(b) of the
California Constitution (referred to on the previous page of this report).

We begin with the list of all capitalized assets, the budget and the current number of customers, as
provided by the GM.

Current Assets Budget Sales

v v v

Reserve Inflation Variable/ Conservation
Calculation Adjustment Fixed Adjustment

A 4

Forecasted Budgets

New

Revenue Forecast R e

From the list of assets the required reserves are calculated (Section 4 of this report) and fed into a 5-
year Budget projection (Section 5)

The Budget is adjusted for 2.0% inflation.

The expenses are then split between fixed and variable expenses.

2 n this report all yellow cells contain data obtained outside the model. All blue cells are calculated.

Georgetown Divide PUD Water Rate Study: Prepared by RCAC Page 8



The fixed expenses are then allocated among the different customers according to their hydrological
potential, as determined by their meter size, and gives us a recommended Base Rate.

The Usage Charge is calculated based on the variable expenses.

The Sales Forecast (in CF or gallons) is adjusted for future growth and water conservation and is then
applied against the Base Rate and Usage Charge, to arrive at a Revenue Forecast.

This Revenue Forecast is then inserted in the forecasted Budget.

If the Budget does not balance with the selected Base Rate and Usage Charge, they are adjusted until
they balance the Budget.

To lessen the impact on District customers, rate increases could be spread over five years.

The same principle works for the irrigation rates, except that the rate, per miner’s inch, is calculated by
dividing the total expenses by the total miner’s inches.

Current Assets Budget Customers

Calculations Reserve Inflation Miner's
o Calculation Adjustment Inch Total

Monthly Rate
New Forecasted Budgets (5 years)

4 per Miner's
Inch

Revenue Forecast B s

Georgetown Divide PUD Water Rate Study: Prepared by RCAC Page 9



4. Capital Replacement Program

Source of the Data
The data in the Capital Replacement Program (CRP) comes from the data supplied by the District’s
General Manager and AWWA standards. It is attached as Exhibit 1T> and Exhibit 11.

The list of the components, their installation date and their original costs were all supplied by the
General Manager (GM) and thoroughly reviewed by the operations manager.

Since this list contained assets used for Treated Water, Irrigation Water and some assets were used by
both, the assets needed to be split between the two classes of service. The graphic below shows how
the assets were split between Treated Water, Irrigation Water and Waste Water.

Split Criteria of Assets
Assets were split between treated and irrigation water according to the use of the asset by either
treated or irrigation customers. Assets pertaining to the sewer system were excluded also. Since many

3 The suffix of the exhibits refers to T for “treated” and | for “irrigation”.

Georgetown Divide PUD Water Rate Study: Prepared by RCAC Page 10



assets are used by both irrigation and treated water, assets were split according to certain rules
explained below.

In the graphic below, all red lines and black blocks are owned by the district and need to be split
between treated and irrigation. The graphic shows the shared assets between irrigation and treated
water assets.

Assets listed in accounting account series 5100 (Water Source) were split according to the volume of
water (acre feet) flowing through the “water source” assets.

The table below shows the water usage split between treated and irrigation water of 21% and 79%
respectively. Water volume during the drought years of 2014 and 2015 were not included.

Georgetown Divide PUD Water Rate Study: Prepared by RCAC Page 11



2012 2013 2016 Average
Drinking Sales 1,591 1,671 1,262 1,508
Crinking Loss 200 200 200 200
Total 1 17917 18717 1,462 1,708
Irrigation Sales 4,681 4,692 4,654 4 676
Irrigation Loss 2,000 1,800 1,800 1,867
Total 6,681 6,492 6,454 6,542
% Treated 21%
% Irrigation 79%

Source: Water Supply & Demand Summary 2012, 2013 and 2016

Assets listed in accounting account series 5200 (Raw Water) were more difficult to split. Staff went
through the list of assets and determined the use of each asset. When an asset was used by both
treated and irrigation water, it was split by volume.

Since most raw water assets are used by both irrigation and treated water, the raw water (5200) asset
split between treated and irrigation water turned out to be the same as the water source (5100) split:
21% and 79% respectively for treated and irrigation water.

Assets associated with the treatment plant (5300) and the distribution system (5400) were all allocated
to treated water.

Assets associated with Customer Service (5500) were split according to the number of customers.

The table below shows the customer service assets split between treated and irrigation water of 71%
and 8% respectively.

Mumber of Customers

Drinking Water 3,774 1%
Irrigation VWater 408 8%
Waste Water 1,099 21%
Total 5,281 100%

Assets associated with everything else (transportation, shop, office, etc.) were split according to the
percentages of all the other assets.

The table below shows the other assets split between treated and irrigation water of 85% and 14%
respectively.

Georgetown Divide PUD Water Rate Study: Prepared by RCAC Page 12



) 3 )

W W Septic
Current Current Current Value
Value Value

SOURCE OF SUPPLY PLAMNT #5100 56,429 083.56  §2 240642 47

LAKE WALTON PLANT #5300 $0.00 54,354 198.53

AUBURN LAKE TRAILS PLANT $0.00 $3,339,546.34

T&D RAW WATER #5200 $2,143.708.19  §$8,045221.12

T & D METERS & METER BOXES $35,811.43 $316,860 .95

T & D TREATED WATER #5400 $0.00 548,487,228.12

TRANSPORTATION EQUIPMENT

SHOP & FIELD EQUIPMENT

GENERAL PLANT

OFFICE EQUIPMENT

SEPTIC COLLECTION PLANT $1.035 877

TRANSPORTATION EQUIPMENT & OTHER

$10.608,603.18 5$66,783,697.563 $1.035,876.51
14% 85% 1%

Exhibit 1 shows the list of all the assets, and their cost, split according to the above split criteria. For
example, a water source asset of an original of cost $1,000,000 is split between treated and irrigation
water according to 79%-21%, then $790,000 is listed in Exhibit 1T and the same asset is listed as
$290,000 in Exhibit 11.

Life Expectancy of Assets
The Normal Estimated Life of all assets listed in Exhibit 1 is based on AWWA standards and adjusted for

actual conditions.

The Estimated Remaining Life in Exhibit 1 is based on the best judgement of the GM, the Operator and
RCAC, after a visual inspection of the condition of the component.

Sources of Funding
Funding of the replacement of components can only come from cash saved by the District, a grant

obtained or a loan.

The Board has made a policy for funding of capital assets as shown in the table below:

Assets Cost between and Cash Grant Loan
SO $50,000 100% 0% 0%

$50,001 $100,000 75% 0% 25%

$100,001 $500,000 50% 20% 30%

$500,001 $9,999,999 25% 20% 55%

For example: a capital replacement project costing $200,000, would ideally be funded 50% cash, 20%
grant and 30% loan.

While the possibility of receiving substantial grants to replace certain components of the system is good
at this time, these possibilities will diminish over time as government funding capabilities will diminish.

Georgetown Divide PUD Water Rate Study: Prepared by RCAC Page 13



The current Median Household Income (MHI) of $46,700 (“Disadvantaged”, but not “Severely
Disadvantages”) makes it difficult for Georgetown rely heavily on grants.

Staff and RCAC went through the list of all assets and determined the realistic split between cash, grant
and loan funding of projects. In aggregate, 26% will be funded with cash, 1% with grants and 73% with
loans.

This study assumes the average interest rate on the loans will be 2.5% APR.

Existing Reserves
Existing funds in all accounts were manually allocated to treated and irrigation water.

The District has about $6,753,000 in cash and liquid assets allocated to the treated water system and
$322,564 to irrigation water. Of these liquid assets, $5,142,000 is available as reserves for future
replacement of deteriorating components of the treated water system and $166,432 is available for the
irrigation system replacement.

These amounts were calculated based on the January 2017 Cash & Investment balances in the district’s
accounts (Exhibit 4). Funds that pertained to both Irrigation and Treated water were split according to
past revenue percentages of each service category.

Description of Exhibit 1T and 11
The CRP provides us with a detail of the reserves needed to replace the capital assets.

The total line of the CRP table (Exhibit 1T $1,544,026 and Exhibit 11 $250,172) are the amount the
District must put aside each year to be able to fund the replacement of equipment for the treated or
irrigation system.

Alternative

If the District decides not to fund the annual capital reserve requirement, the District will have to come
up with these amounts from other sources, or from steeper rate increases in future years. The District
can’t count on the future generosity of the state or other government sources to provide any sizable
grants.

It will require a substantial effort of the District’s staff to obtain these grants and loans. The amount of
grants obtained for future projects has a large impact on the rates. Therefore this study recommends a
new rate study when new loans or grants are obtained.

Georgetown Divide PUD Water Rate Study: Prepared by RCAC Page 14



5. Budget

Board Member Analysis Request (Board Scenario)+
At the October 18, 2017 Board Meeting, the Board asked staff to analyze a scenario that funds general
and administrative (G&A) expenses (Department 6500 with tax revenue for the first year.

e Estimated Available Tax Revenue: $1,569,000

e G&E Expenses for the first year are: $1,198,350

e The remaining $371,000 was proposed to be allocated to:
0 Ditch maintenance and water meter replacement programs
0 $35,000 for water bill relief for low-income household subsidies
0 $336,000 up to bring down irrigation costs

Analysis of the Board Scenario
For purposes of calculating the rates, we can apply tax revenues to the G&A expenses. However, this
will have to be assumed for all future years, not just the first year.

The ditch maintenance and water meter replacement programs are already included in the CIP section
of the rate setting calculation, and hence need not be funded separately.

The funding for a low-income household water bill subsidy program can be added to the budget used for
the rate calculations.

The impact of this scenario on the rates is discussed at the end of this report.

Source off Data5

All expenses shown in Exhibit 2 (5-Year Budget sheet) are based on the budget provided by the District
for 2016-17 to 2020-21. The forecasted budget for the 2021/22 year was extrapolated. This budget
assumed full staffing.

This Budget was then split between treated water and irrigation water, as explained in the graphic
below.

4 We shall call this the “Board Scenario”. The alternative scenario, we shall call “recommended scenario.”
5 Unless indicated otherwise, the Board Scenario and the Recommended Scenario” are the same.

Georgetown Divide PUD Water Rate Study: Prepared by RCAC Page 15



Expenses from

Budget

17/18 through 20/21

Treated

Water Source Raw Water Treatment Distribution Customer Admin
5100 5200 Plant 5300 SVS 5500 5600
5400
71% 8%
21% 79% o o o o 71% o
1708 AF 6,542 AF 21% 79% 100% 100% 3,774 408 8%
l Treated Water ; ¢
Budget 17/18 through 20/21 (*
Irrigation Water
Budget 17/18 through 20/21 (*)
. Water Usage Actual allocation Number of Number of
Split for the last 3 of assets All Treated All Treated Customers Customers
Criteria (Section D) (Section D)

years

(Section E)

(Section B)

(*) 2021/22 Budget was extrapolated from previous years

Source: 2016-2017 Working Budget + Split

The split of the budget between Treated and Irrigation water of accounts 5100, 5200, 5300, 5400 and
5500 were discussed in the section about the split of the assets on page 10. The split of the General and
Administration expenses (5600) is split according to the number of customers served by the District.

Reserve Funding
Exhibit 4 shows all the funds in the District’s accounts, as of January 2017. These funds were split
between treated and irrigation water.

These funds were further split in the four types of reserves the District should consider, according to
AWWA standards: Debt Reserve, Operating Reserve, Emergency Reserve and Capital Reserve.

Treated Water

Existing Reserves Amount
Debt Reserve $335,511 As per lending agreement(s)
Operating Reserve $876,629
Emergency Reserve $778,569
Capital Reserve $4,762,189
Total $6,752,898
Excess funds to be transfer to
Reserve Targets Amount Annual Reserve Addition ~ CRP
Debt Reserve $335,511 SO SO

Georgetown Divide PUD Water Rate Study: Prepared by RCAC Page 16



Operating Reserve $856,341 SO $20,288

Emergency Reserve S443,000 SO $335,569

This is the total amount currently available for CIP.
Capital Reserve $5,118,046 Transferred to CIP sheet.

We compare the existing reserves against the target reserves. Any excess in Debt-, Operating- or
Emergency Reserves is allocated to Capital Reserves. Any shortfall in Debt-, Operating- or Emergency
Reserves is added to the budget in five installments, so the shortfall is eliminated in five years.

1. Debt Reserve: Your lenders requires that you keep $335,511 in a Debt Reserve Account for your
treated water loans (or the drinking water portion of joint loans). The District is in compliance
with that provision, hence we need not include funds in the Budget to fund this type of reserve.

2. Operating Reserve: Operating reserves are established to provide the District with the ability to
withstand short term cash-flow fluctuations. A 45-day operating reserve is a frequently used
industry norm which computes to $856,341 in Operating Reserves. As of July 2017, you have
this in the bank, hence we need not include additional Operating Reserves in our Budget. In fact,
you have $20,288 more than that. It is recommended that you transfer this amount into your
Capital Reserve account.

3. Emergency Reserve: Emergency reserves are intended to help utilities deal with short-term
emergencies, such as main breaks or pump failures. An emergency is intended to fund the
immediate replacement or reconstruction of the system’s single most critical asset. We estimate
that $443,000 would be sufficient for emergency reserves for the treated water. As of July
2017, you have $778,569 in the bank for treated water. It is recommended that you transfer the
excess of $335,569 from Emergency Reserves to Capital Reserves.

4. Capital Replacement Reserve: This reserve is strictly to be used to fund the District portion of
any replacement of capital assets that are worn out. We assume that the balance of the liquid
assets can be used for Capital Reserves. You currently have $4,762,189 in Capital reserves
dedicated to the treated water system. Add to that the $20,288 in excess Operating Reserves
and $335,569 in excess Emergency Reserves, give us a current Capital Reserve of $ $5,118,046.

Irrigation Water

Existing Reserves Amount Goal

Debt Reserve SO As per lending agreement(s)

Operating Reserve $106,131 | 45 days of expenses

Emergency Reserve $94,259 | Critical equipment replacement cost
Capital Reserve $122,173 | Funds available to replace existing assets
Total $322,564

Georgetown Divide PUD Water Rate Study: Prepared by RCAC Page 17



Reserve Targets Amount Annual Reserve Addition Excess funds to be transfer to CIP

Debt Reserve SO SO SO

Operating Reserve $122,595 $3,293 SO

Emergency Reserve ‘ $50,000 ‘ SO S44,259
This is the total amount currently available for CIP.

Capital Reserve $166,432 Transferred to CIP sheet.

We compare the existing reserves against the target reserves. Any excess in Debt-, Operating- or
Emergency Reserves is allocated to Capital Reserves. Any shortfall in Debt-, Operating- or Emergency
Reserves is added to the budget in five installments, so the shortfall is eliminated in five years.

Four type of reserves:

1. Debt Reserve: None of the debt associated with the irrigation system requires any debt reserve.

2. Operating Reserve: Operating reserves are established to provide the District with the ability to
withstand short term cash-flow fluctuations. A 45-day operating reserve is a frequently used
industry norm which computes to $122,595 in Operating Reserves. As of July 2017, you only
have $106,131 in the bank, hence we need to budget an extra $3,293 for the next 5 years to
bring this amount up to the target. This amount of $3,293 is added to the Budget.

3. Emergency Reserve: Emergency reserves are intended to help utilities deal with short-term
emergencies, such as main breaks or pump failures. An emergency is intended to fund the
immediate replacement or reconstruction of the system’s single most critical asset. We estimate
that $50,000 would be sufficient for emergency reserves for the irrigation water. As of July
2017, you have $94,259 in the bank for irrigation water emergencies. It is recommended that
you transfer the excess of $44,259 from Emergency Reserves to Capital Reserves.

4. Capital Replacement Reserve: This reserve is strictly to be used to fund the District portion of
any replacement of capital assets that are worn out. We assume that the balance of the liquid
assets can be used for Capital Reserves. You currently have $122,173 in Capital Reserves
dedicated to the irrigation water system. Add to that the $44,259 in excess Emergency Reserves
this gives us a current Capital Reserve of $166,432.

Allocation of Property Taxes
The District has about $1,569,000 in annual property tax revenue. The board has full discretion on how
to spend these funds for any District-related purpose.

Board Scenario
At the October 18, 2017 Board meeting, it was suggested that the tax revenue be split as follows:

Georgetown Divide PUD Water Rate Study: Prepared by RCAC Page 18



e To cover G&A expenses (Department 5600): $1,198,000
e Water bill subsidies for low-income families: $35,000
e Allocation to irrigation services: $336,000

Recommended Scenario

Since the Board has discretion to allocate these outside funds, we would ask the Board to allocate
$1,006,000 (64%) to treated water and 563,000 (36%) to irrigation. These numbers are necessary to
avoid a negative cash flow for the irrigation service, without having to increase the rates for customers
with 1 miner’s inch of usage, by more than 100% in the first year.

Reserve Accounting and Investment Opportunities
The District has multiple checking and savings accounts that do not correspond to AWWA standards for
reserve accounts. It is recommended that the District have:

One Operating account
Debt reserve accounts for each loan
At least one Emergency account for each class of service: treated, irrigation, waste water

P wne

At least one Capital reserve account for each class of service
The names of these accounts should correspond with the four reserves recommended by the AWWA.
The District should also have policies in place regarding:

1. who can access these accounts
2. for what purposes funds can be withdrawn
3. how often the reserve accounts are funded from the operating account

By design, cash will accumulate in the Operating account. Periodically any excess funds above the target
set on page 18 should be transferred to the Capital Reserve accounts.

Operating cash should remain in the checking account.

Debt Reserve funds can be invested for a long time, preferably maturing at the same time as the
associated debt.

Emergency Reserves should be kept in a savings account for immediate liquidity.

Capital Reserves could be invested in a series of maturities that correspond with the Capital
Improvement plan horizon.

By following the above principles, you can maximize your return on your reserves.

Georgetown Divide PUD Water Rate Study: Prepared by RCAC Page 19



5. Rate Calculation
The Districts is planning to change all 5/8” meters with %” meters in the next two years. New homes will
probably be required to install fire suppression sprinklers, which require 1” meters. An analysis of the
usage data indicates that customers with 5/8”, %” of 1” use about the same quantity of water and the
extra capacity of their meter is only needed for emergencies. Therefore we recommend that the rates
for the bottom three sizes of meters be the same.

AWWA recommends that expenses be split between fixed and variable expenses. Fixed expenses are
expenses that don’t change when the volume of water changes. (Example: insurance) Variable
expenses are those that change with the volume of water sold. (Example: utilities)

In theory, fixed expenses need to be funded with Base Charges and variable expenses determine the
Usage Charge.

The fixed expenses are allocated to the different meter sizes according to their hydrological potential
draw.

The “Theoretical Base Rate by Meter Size per 2M” in the tables below was calculated using this method.
California courts have determined that this national standard, is compliant with Prop 218.

Georgetown Divide PUD Water Rate Study: Prepared by RCAC Page 20



A. Board Scenario
Treated Water
Base Rate Calculation for Treated Water

Theoretical | Base Rate
Base Rate by | as % of Proposed
Meter | Meter Size, | Theoretical Existing |Base Charge
Size per 2M Rate Base Rate | for Yearl Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
Future Increases —_— 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%
'5/8" $91.25 75%|  $47.14|$  68.43 $71.85  $75.44  $79.21  $83.17
B [ 413687 [ so%| %4714 (¢ 6843  $71.86 0 47545 $79.22 1 483.18
[ s22812( 30%| %4714 |$ 6843  $71.85 $75.44 87921 $83.17
15 [ sase23 | s0%|  $47.14 (¢ 22812 $23952 7 $251.50 $264.08  $277.28
v [ $72907 so%| 94714 (¢ 36498 9383237 $40239 0 $422.51 $443.64
3 [ $1,45994 so%|  $47.14[$ 72097 $766.47 = 480479 $845.03  $887.28
[ $2,281.45 [ 50%|  $50.32 [$ 1,140.58 [ $1,197.61  $1,257.49 = $1,320.36  $1,386.38
Usage Rate Calulation
Bottom of Top of Year 1, per
Tier Tier Tier 100 CF Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
Future Increases — 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%
1 | 999999 $2.2500 $236  $2.48 $2.60  $2.73 '
Net Gain/Loss (incl. reserve contrib.  -648,067  -565,030  -397,733  -316,016  -194,610
Are contributions to res. enough? "No 'No 'No No 'No
Contribution to Reserves (Cashflow] 884,536 963,324 961,788 1,043,506 1,164,911
Affordability Index MH  46,700.00 1.45% 1.53% 1.62% 1.71% 1.80%
Project funding $30.16/2 months 0.39% 0.39% 0.39% 0.39% 0.39%,
Afforability of total rate 1.84% 1.92% 2.01% 2.10% 2.18%

Using the rates in the yellow cells and a 5% rate increase for the next 5 years has the following
consequences:

e Treated water customers will see a rate increase of 66% over 5 years.

e The average homeowner will pay about $139.82 every two months, in the fifth year.

e Reserves are funded in a substantial way, but still 14% short of the target in the fifth year.

e A 15 year projection (not shown) estimates that reserve funds will be exhausted, unless rates
are increased after the fifth year of this study.

The graph below shows the trends:

e Expenses (orange bar) grow at the rate of inflation

e Revenue (green bar) grows at 5% per year

e Contributions to reserves (blue bar) are enough to cover the planned capital replacements in
year 5 and beyond.

e Charges to Reserves (red bar) are the replacement costs of certain assets, according to the CRP

Georgetown Divide PUD Water Rate Study: Prepared by RCAC Page 21



e The Reserve Balance® (yellow bar) is the total amount of all reserves, which is growing as
expected.

6 Total Reserves (Capital Replacement Reserves, Emergency Reserves, Debt Reserves, etc.)

Georgetown Divide PUD Water Rate Study: Prepared by RCAC Page 22



Irrigation Water
New Irrigation Rates

Meter Theoretical as % of Proposed
Size Meter Size Seasocnal Theoretical Base Charge
(M) {metric) Rate by MI Rate for Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
Future Increases ————— 10.0% 10.0% 10.0% 10.0%

VS 0500 5966 51% 5493 | 542 | $596 | $656 | $721
L 1000 = $1932" 51% so86 ' $1,084 = S1,192 = $1,312 ' $1,443
Ti50 7 1500 ©  $2,899" s1%’ 1478 ' $1,626 = 51,789 = $1968 $2,164
L 2000  $3865 51% $1971  $2168 @ $2385 $2.623 $2,886
fag ' 2500 %4831 51%’  $2.464 ' $2710 0 $2,081 = §3279 $3,607
fan T 3000 5797 s1%’  $2,957 ' $3252 ' §3577 ©  §3,935 $4,329
EX 3500 $6763 51%  $3.449 = $3794  $4174  $4,591 $5,050
Faw " 2000 $7730° s1%’  $3042 ' 54336 $4770 = §5.247 $5,772
(5w F 5000 $9.662 51%’  $4928 '  $5420 §5962 @ $6,559 $7,214
- 6000 @ 511,504 51% $5913 @ $6504  §7,155  §7,870 $8,657
i 7000~ $13527 51% %6899 ' 57588 = $8347  $9182 510,100
Tgn 7 8000 = 515459 51%’  $7,884 ' $8,673 = $9,540 @ 510,494 @ §11,543
Tgn T 9000 " 517391 51%’  $8870 @ $9757 = $10,732 = S$11,805 @ $12,986
"1 " 10000 s19324 51% $9.855  $10,841 = $11925  $13,117 = $14.429
"12 " 12000 " 23189 51%’  $11,826 ' $13,000 @ $14,310 @ $15741  §17.315
"1s* " 1sooo” 28986 51%’  $14783 ' S16,261 = $17,887 @ 519,676 @ §21,643
"16 7 16000 530918 51% $15768 @ $17,345 = $19,080 @ $20,988 @ $23,086
"1 " 18000 34783 s1%’  $17,730 ' $19513 '  $21464 @ $23611  §25972
"200 " 20000 " s38648" 51%’  $19,710 = $21681 = $23,849 ' $26,234 = $28,858
"25 " 25000 @ $48309 51% $24,638 @ $27,102 @ $29,812 @ 532793 §36,072
"ao" " soo000 " ss7971” 51%  $29565  $32522 | §35774  $39352 @ $43287
"aor "  aooco0” 877205 51%’  $30.421 ' 543363 =  $47,609 ' $52,463 = $57.716
"az~ "  a3oo0” 83002 51%’  $42,377 | $46,615 = S$51276 @ $56,404 @ $62,044
Expenses from Budget $1,201,040 § 1249058 $1,208202 $1,343,310 § 1,365,138
Income Generated by the Selected Rate % 948990 51017009 51,091,292 51172455 % 1,261,175
Net Gain or Loss (incl. reserve contributions) -252,951 -232,049 -206,911 -170,855 -103,963
Are contributions to reserves enough? |N|:r |ND |ND |ND |ND
Contributions to Reserve (Cashflow) S (1,028) S 15876 & 45014 & 81070 S 147 962
Target Contribution to Reserve % 251925 5 251925 & 251925 5 251925 & 251925

Using the rates in the yellow cells and a 10% rate increase for the next 5 years has the following
consequences:

e Rates increase for 1 Miner’s inch by 172%.

e This increase ONLY covers operating expenses and NO reserves.

e Rates must be adjusted in year 5 to cover planned capital replacements, or the replacements
can not be funded after the 5™ year.

Georgetown Divide PUD Water Rate Study: Prepared by RCAC Page 23



The graph above shows the trends:

e Expenses (orange bar) grow at the rate of inflation

e Revenue (green bar) grows at 10% per year

e Contributions to reserves (blue bar) are barely enough to cover the planned capital
replacements in year 5.

e Charges to Reserves (red bar) are the replacement costs of certain assets, according to the CRP

e The Reserve Balance’ (yellow bar) is the total amount of all reserves, which will be completely
exhausted by the fifth year.

B. Recommended Scenario
The differences between the Board Scenario and the Recommended Scenario are:

e Taxrevenue is allocated based on need to keep irrigation customers’ increase in the first year to
around 109%, vs 197% for the Board Scenario.

e General & Administrative expenses are allocated between treated and irrigation customers,
according to the number of customer in the recommended scenario, which is an acceptable
“rule” for allocating expenses.

7 Total Reserves (Capital Replacement Reserves, Emergency Reserves, Debt Reserves, etc.)

- ]
Georgetown Divide PUD Water Rate Study: Prepared by RCAC Page 24



Treated Water

Base Rate Calculation for Treated Water

Theoretical | Base Rate
Base Rate by | as % of Proposed
Meter | Meter Size, | Theoretical | Existing |Base Charge
Size per 2M Rate Base Rate | for Year1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
Future Increases ) 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%
5/8" $112.02 s2%|  $47.14|$ 5881 $61.75  $64.84  $68.08  $71.48
34" $168.03 35%| $4714[¢ 5881 86175~ 464.84 $68.08 $71.48
(L $280.05 21%| %4714 |$ 5881  $61.75 $64.84 $68.08  $71.48
15" $560.10 35%| $47.14[$ 19604 $205.84 °  $216.13 $226.94  $238.29
X $896.17 35%| $47.14[$ 31366 $320.3¢ 7 4345817  $363.10 ~  $381.26
g $1,792.34 35%| $47.14[$ 62732 465868 $691.61  $726.19  $762.50
g $2,800.52 35%|  $50.32 [$ 98018 $1,029.19 " $1,080.65  $1,134.68 = $1,191.41
Usage Rate Calulation
Bottom of Top of Year 1, per
Tier Tier Tier 100 CF Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
Future Increases — 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%
1 - 999,999 |  $2.5500 $2.68 $2.81 $2.95 $3.10

Net Gain/Loss (incl. reserve contrib, 575,577  -503,979  -513,331  -440,641  -309,025
r r r r

Are contributions to res. enough? No No No No No

Contribution to res. (Cashflow) 957,026 1,028,624 1,019,272 1,091,962 1,223,578
Affordability Index MH  46,700.00 1.40% 1.48% 1.57% 1.66% 1.74%
Project funding $30.16/2 months 0.39% 0.39% 0.39% 0.39% 0.39%
Afforability of total rate 1.79% 1.87% 1.96% 2.05% 2.13%

Using the rates in the yellow cells and a 5% rate increase for the next 5 years has the following

consequences:

Treated water customers will see a rate increase of 61% over 5 years. The average homeowner

will pay about $135.67 every two months, in the fifth year.

Reserves are funded in a substantial way, but still 20% short of the target in the fifth year.

A 15 year projection (not shown) estimates that reserve funds will be close to exhausted, unless

rates are increased after the tenth year of this study.

The graph below shows the trends:

Expenses (orange bar) grow at the rate of inflation

Revenue (green bar) grows at 5% per year

Contributions to reserves (blue bar) are enough to cover the planned capital replacements in
year 5 and beyond.

Charges to Reserves (red bar) are the replacement costs of certain assets, according to the CRP

Georgetown Divide PUD Water Rate Study: Prepared by RCAC

Page 25



e The Reserve Balance® (yellow bar) is the total amount of all reserves, which is growing as
expected.

8 Total Reserves (Capital Replacement Reserves, Emergency Reserves, Debt Reserves, etc.)

Georgetown Divide PUD Water Rate Study: Prepared by RCAC Page 26



Irrigation Water
New Irrigation Rates

Meter Theoretical % of Proposed

Size  MeterSize  Seasonal Theoretical Base Charge

(M1} {metric) Rate by MI Rate forYearl Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

Future Increases S e——— 10.0% 10.0% 10.0% 10.0%

Ty T 0.500 ~ s1,042" 37% $3gs sa24 © 3466 3513 3564
i LI 1.000 " 52,084 37% ratl sgag " 4933 " 1,026 $1,129
r r r r r r r r r

1.5" 1.500 $3,126 37% $1,156 31,272 51,399 $1,539 51,693
r r r r r r r r r

2" 2.000 54,167 37% $1,542 41,696 41,866 $2,052 $2,258
r r r r r r r r r

2.5" 2.500 $5,209 37% $1,927 $2,120 $2,332 $2,565 $2,822
r r r r r r r r r

3" 3.000 $6,251 37% $2,313 $2,544 $2,799 $3,078 $3,386
r r r r r r r r r

3.5" 3.500 $7,293 37% $2,698 42,968 43,265 $3,592 $3,951
a7 a.000 " $8,335 37% $3,084 833920 43,7310 #4105 34,515
"gn T 5.000 ©  $10,419 37% 43,855 ~ 44,240 " 44,664 85,131 45,644
e " 6.000 = $12,502" 37% 54,626 ~ 35,088 ~ 85,597 " $6,157 36,773
i I 7000~ $14,586 37% $5,397 ~ 35,936 46,530 $7,183 $7,901
"gn " 8.000 16,670 37% 46,168 36,785 $7,463 8,209 " $9,030
Tgn T 9.000 © 418,753 37% 56,939 $7,633 ~ 48,396 49,235 $10,159
r r r r r r r r r

10 10.000 $20,837 37% $7,710 48,481 49,329 $10,262 311,288
r r r r r r r r r

12" 12.000 $25,004 37% 49,252 $10,177 $11,194 12,314 $13,545
r r r r r r r r r

15" 15.000 $31,256 37% $11,565 $12,721 $13,993 315,392 316,932
r r r r r r r r r

16" 16.000 $33,339 37% $12,336 $13,569 314,926 516,419 $18,060
r r r r r r r r r

18" 18.000 $37,507 37% $13,877 415,265 316,792 318,471 $20,318
r r r r r r r r r

20" 20.000 41,674 37% 515,419 416,961 318,657 $20,523 $22,576
r r r r r r r r r

25" 25.000 $52,093 37% 519,274 $21,202 $23,322 425,654 428,219
r r r r r r r r r

30" 30.000 $62,511 37% $23,129 425,442 $27,986 $30,785 433,863
"agr " 40.000 © 483,348 37% $30,839 433,923 ' 437,315 41,046 445,151
"azr " 43.000 ©  $89,599 37%  $33,152 436467 | 40,114 = 44125 448,537
Expenses from Budget $ 1,296,062 $ 1,347,227 $ 1,400,629 $ 1,450,035 $ 1,473,966 |
Income Generated by the Selected Rate 5 1,041,543 5 1,100,737 S 1,184,952 S 1,234,671 S 1,310,426
Met Gain or Loss (incl. reserve contributions) -254,519 -246,490 -235,677 -215,364 -163,540
Are contributions to reserves enough? |N0 |No |No |N0 |N0
Contributions to Reserve {Cashflow) 3 (1,054) 5 6,975 &5 17,788 S 38,101 S 89,924
Target Contribution to Reserve $ 253465 S5 253455 S 253,465 S 253,465 S 253,465

Using the rates in the yellow cells and a 10% rate increase for the next 5 years has the following
consequences:

e Rates increase for 1 Miner’s inch by 109%, from $363.70 to $771.00 for the season.

e This increase ONLY covers operating expenses and NO reserves.

e Rates must be adjusted in year 5 to cover planned capital replacements, or the replacements
can not be funded after the 5% year.

Georgetown Divide PUD Water Rate Study: Prepared by RCAC Page 27



The graph above shows the trends:

e Expenses (orange bar) grow at the rate of inflation

e Revenue (green bar) grows at 10% per year

e Contributions to reserves (blue bar) are not enough to cover the planned capital replacements
in year 5.

e Charges to Reserves (red bar) are the replacement costs of certain assets, according to the CRP

e The Reserve Balance® (yellow bar) is the total amount of all reserves, which will be completely
exhausted by the fifth year.

C. Discussion of Scenarios
We prefer the Recommended Scenario because:

e Tax revenue is allocated based on need to keep irrigation customers’ increase in the first year to
109%, vs 197% for the Board Scenario.

e General & Administrative expenses are allocated between treated and irrigation customers,
according to the number of customer in the recommended scenario, which is an acceptable
“rule” for allocating expenses.

e |n both cases, rates for irrigation customers will have to be reviewed in 4-5 years.

e Theincrease in rates for both treated and irrigation customers are lower under the
recommended scenario.

The table below shows the differences in the rates.

% Total Reserves (Capital Replacement Reserves, Emergency Reserves, Debt Reserves, etc.)

Georgetown Divide PUD Water Rate Study: Prepared by RCAC Page 28



Bi-Monthly Base Rate for Treated Water in Year 5

Board Recommended
Current F G

5/8" $47.14 $68.43 $58.81
3/q" 547.14 568.43 558.81
1" $47.14 $68.43 $58.81
1.5" 547.14 5228.12 5196.04
2" $47.14 $364.93 $313.66
3" 547.14 5729.97 5627.32
4" $50.32 $1,140.58 $980.18

Usage per 100CF of Treated Water in Year 5
All §1.38-52.21 52.25 52.55

Average Bi-Monthly Bill for 5/8" meter in Year 5, for 2100 CF
84.18 139.82 135.67
% Increase B6% 61%

Seasonal rate for Irrigation Water in year 5
1n 5363.70 51,443.00 51,129.00
% Increase 297% 210%

7. Next Step

Start the process
The District must follow Proposition 218 (Exhibit 3) in implementing the water rates. The Board must
have a hearing and pass a resolution that includes:

1. The selected rates
Approve of the wording of the Prop 218 Notice (Sample in Exhibit X and emailed to the GM for
editing. Make sure the Public Notice reflects the rates, tiers and fees approved by the Board).

3. Set a date for the Notices to be mailed to all the property owners and renters within the
District. (No need to send them registered mail. Send the Notices to all “property owners of
record”. Your County Tax Collector or Assessor can provide you with a list of addresses and
address labels.)

4. Set a due date for the protests votes to be received, at least 45 days after the Notices are
mailed.

Georgetown Divide PUD Water Rate Study: Prepared by RCAC Page 29



5. At the second meeting, the Board must plan to take testimony. You may want to set multiple

10»

hearing dates or “educational meetings™” to explain the rate increases to the public.

6. Set an effective date for the proposed rates and fees.

Hearing
At the due date of the protest votes, tally the protest votes. If more than half of the parcel owners
protest (one vote per parcel); then the Board cannot adopt the rates proposed in step 1, but must

e keep the rates unchanged,
e or repeat the process starting with step 1.

If less than half of the property owners protest, the Board can adopt the rates and fees. At that time in
the process, the Board can only accept or reject the proposed rates and fees—they cannot change!?
them (unless steps 1-6 are repeated.)

Implementation
The rate structure proposed in this model can be implemented through the District’s billing system.

Policies must be put in place to

e set up the appropriate reserve accounts: emergency, capital

e fund the reserves from revenue

e access the accounts

e define the circumstances under which funds can be withdrawn

The Board should also commit to a new rate study within 4 years, to extend rate increases beyond the 5
years, Prop 218 allows us to set rates for.

Finally, the Board should commit to create a subsidy program for low-income customers.

10 “Hearings” imply the presence of the Board and require an agenda and the appropriate notices. “Education
Meetings” can be presented by staff, without the presence of Board members or an agenda.
1 Neither raise nor lower them.

- ]
Georgetown Divide PUD Water Rate Study: Prepared by RCAC Page 30



8. Exhibits

Exhibit 1T: Capital Replacement Program Treated Water (Same for either scenario)
Exhibit 11: Capital Replacement Program Irrigation Water (Same for either scenario)
Exhibit 2T: Budget Treated Water (Board)

Exhibit 21: Budget Irrigation Water (Board)

Exhibit 3T: Budget Treated Water (Recommended)

Exhibit 31: Budget Irrigation Water (recommended)

Exhibit 4: Cash & Investment Split (Same for either scenario)

Exhibit 5: Prop 218 Text

Exhibit 6: Sample Notice Document

Georgetown Divide PUD Water Rate Study: Prepared by RCAC Page 31



Capital Replacement Program

Exhibit 1T

Georgetown Divide PUD TW Date: 10/20/17|
System Number: 910013|
Service Connections: 3774
Unit Cost
(Historic, Cost Normal Planned Estimated Fund Fund
Year Current or Type Estimated Estimated  Current Estimated Remaining  Remaining Estimated  Fund with ~ with with Existing Annual Reserve
Qty Component Acquired Future) (H, C, F) Historic Cost Life Age Current Cost Life Life Future Cost Cash Grant  Loan Reserves Required
Existing Capital Replacement Program

SOURCE OF SUPPLY PLANT #5100 30
1|Mark Edson Dam & Stumpy Meadows Res. 1962 $106,333 H $106,333 100 55 $315,993 45 50 $850,524 10% 50% 40% $12,389 $1,072
1|Tunnel Hill Tunnel 1962 $22,577 H $22,577 100 55 $67,092 45 46 $166,831 25% 20% 55% $6,076 $586
1|Kaiser Siphon Replacement (1) 1964 $83,961 © $28,778 100 53 $83,961 47 46 $208,778 25% 20% 55% $7,603 $734
1[Sand Trap Siphon (1) 1964 $34,125 C $11,696 100 53 $34,125 47 48 $88,284 50% 50% $6,430 $587
1|Up Country Ditch Imp (Pilot Ck Diversion to Tunnell Hill Inlet) (1) 1964 $424,830 © $145,612 100 53 $424,830 47 56 $1,287,731 10% 50% 40% $18,758 $1,392

$0

$0

5200 SHARED 30
1|Cabin Waste Gate Replacement (1) 1972 $6,300 © $2,538 40 45 $6,300 -5 20 $9,361 100% 0% $1,364 $357
1|Bacon Creek Pipe (1) 1964 $53,576 C $18,363 40 53 $53,576 -13 20 $79,611 50% 50% $5,798 $1,518
1|Buckeye Conduit (1) 1964 $94,461 © $32,377 40 53 $94,461 -13 20 $140,364 25% 75% $5,112 $1,338
1|up Country Ditch (Penn Stock Bypass to Shroeder Conduit) (1) 1964 $156,056 C $53,489 40 53 $156,056 -13 5 $172,299 25% 75% $6,275 $7,189
1|Main Ditch #1 Imp (1) 1964 $433,821 © $148,694 40 53 $433,821 -13 5 $478,973 10% 50% 40% $6,977 $7,994
1|Main Ditch #2 to ALT (1) 1964 $101,194 C $34,685 40 53 $101,194 -13 5 $111,726 25% 75% $4,069 $4,662

$0

$0

5200 IRRIGATION ONLY (1) $0

1|Main Ditch #2 below ALT 1964 $0 C $0 40 53 $0 -13 10 25% 75% $0

1|Pilot Hill Ditch (Main) 1964 $0 C $0 40 53 $0 -13 10 50% 50% $0

1|Pilot Hill Ditch 1964 $0 C $0 40 53 $0 -13 10 25% 75% $0

1|Kelsey Ditch #1 1964 $0 C $0 40 53 $0 -13 10 25% 75% $0

1|Kelsey Ditch #2 Imp 1964 $0 c $0 40 53 $0 -13 10 25% 75% 30

1|Spanish Dry Diggins Ditch 1964 S0 © $0 40 53 $0 -13 10 100% 0% S0

1|Taylor Mine Ditch 1964 S0 C $0 40 53 $0 -13 10 100% 0% $0

$0

$0

5300 - Lake Walton WTP $0
1|Lake Walton Plant Replacement (4) 1992| $12,728,909 C| $7,681,448 50 25 $12,728,909 25 25| $20,883,124 25% 75% $760,506 $154,431
1|Raw Water Bypass (1) 1974 $500,000 C $209,745 40 43 $500,000 -3 19 $728,406 25% 75% $26,527 $7,354
1|Lake Walton Outlet Works (1) 1974 $50,000 © $20,974 40 43 $50,000 -3 19 $72,841 100% 0% $10,611 $2,942
1|Lake Walton Dredging (1) 1974 $500,000 C $301,732 40 25 $500,000 15 22 $772,990 25% 75% $28,150 $6,617

43 -43 $0

5300 - AUBURN LAKE TRAILS PLANT $0
1|ALT Water Treatment Plant (4) 2018| $12,728,909 C| $12,988,683 50 -1 $12,728,909 51 59( $40,945,042 25% 75%|  $1,491,105 $102,887

$0

$0

5400 T & D METERS & METER BOXES $0
1|Automated Meter Reading and Meter Replacement Project (5) 2018 $1,745,800 C| $1,781,429 20 =i $1,745,800 21 2| $1,816,330 25% 75% $66,146 $192,839

$0

T & D TREATED WATER #5400 (2) $0
1|Angel Camp Tank (0.5 MG) 1974 $776,602 C $325,777 40 43 $776,602 -3 10 $946,674 25% 75% $34,475 $19,174
1|Deer Ravine Tank (0.25 MG) 1974 $388,301 © $162,888 40 43 $388,301 -3 10 $473,337 50% 50% $34,475 $19,174
1/|Pilot Hill Tank (0.47 MG) 1974 $730,006 C $306,230 40 43 $730,006 -3 10 $889,873 25% 75% $32,407 $18,023
1|Black Ridge Road Tank (0.06 MG) 1974 $93,192 © $39,093 40 43 $93,192 -3 10 $113,601 75% 25% $12,411 $6,903
1|Hotchkiss Hill Tank (0.06 MG) 1974 $93,192 C $39,093 40 43 $93,192 -3 10 $113,601 75% 25% $12,411 $6,903
1|Spanish Dry Diggins Tank (0.2 MG) 1971 $310,641 © $122,647 40 46 $310,641 -6 10 $378,670 50% 50% $27,580 $15,339




1|Black Oak Mine Tank (0.3 MG) 1974 $465,961 C $195,466 40 43 $465,961 -3 10 $568,004 25% 75% $20,685 $11,504
1|Garden Park Tank (0.2 MG) 1974 $310,641 © $130,311 40 43 $310,641 -3 10 $378,670 50% 50% $27,580 $15,339
1|Kelsey Tank (0.21 MG) 1974 $332,386 C $139,432 40 43 $332,386 -3 10 $405,177 50% 50% $29,511 $16,413
1|Hotchkiss Hill Subtank (0.06 MG) 1974 $93,192 © $39,093 40 43 $93,192 -3 10 $113,601 75% 25% $12,411 $6,903
1|Black Ridge Road Pump Station 1974 $123,400 C $51,765 40 43 $123,400 -3 5 $136,244 75% 25% $14,885 $17,055
1|Chipmunk Trail Pump Station 1974 $123,400 © $51,765 40 43 $123,400 -3 5 $136,244 75% 25% $14,885 $17,055
1|Reservoir Road Pump Station 1974 $123,400 C $51,765 40 43 $123,400 -3 5 $136,244 75% 25% $14,885 $17,055
1|4-Inch Pipelines (42,130 AC, 50,771 PVC If) 1974| $3,437,337 C|  $1,441,927 60 43 $3,437,337 17 15|  $4,626,203 25% 75% $168,474 $60,618
1|6-Inch Pipelines (175,142 AC, 3,981 DI, 235,640 PVC If) 1974 $19,908,624 C| $8,351,462 60 43 $19,908,624 17 15| $26,794,387 25% 75% $975,778 $351,090
1|8-Inch Pipelines (42,068 AC, 85,394 PVC If) 1974| $7,392,796 C| $3,101,201 60 43 $7,392,796 17 15|  $9,949,730 25% 75% $362,342 $130,373
1|10-Inch Pipelines (36,484 AC, 10,359 PVC If) 1974| $2,951,109 C| $1,237,960 60 43 $2,951,109 17 15 $3,971,804 25% 75% $144,642 $52,043
1|12-Inch Pipelines (42,346 AC If) 1974| $3,388,480 C| $1,421,432 60 43 $3,388,480 17 15|  $4,560,448 25% 75% $166,079 $59,756

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

TRANSPORTATION EQUIPMENT (3) 50
1|Mobile Radios 1971 $4,056 H $4,056 5 46 $10,085 -41 5 $11,134 100% 0% $1,622 $1,858
1| Truck 2017 $38,250 © $38,250 15 0 $38,250 15 15 $51,479 100% 0% $7,499 $2,698
1|Excavator 2017 $55,250 c $55,250 15 0 $55,250 15 15 $74,359 100% 0% $10,832 $3,897
1|Trailer for excavator 2017 $10,625 © $10,625 20 0 $10,625 20 20 $15,788 100% 0% $2,300 $602
1|Trailer & Hookups 1991 $9,469 H $9,469 5 26 $15,846 -21 10 $19,316 100% 0% $2,814 $1,565
1|1998 Ford Pickup Truck 1998 $10,340 H $10,340 5 19 $15,064 -14 10 $18,363 100% 0% $2,675 $1,488
11999 Ford F150 Pickup 1999 $10,304 H $10,304 5 18 $14,717 -13 10 $17,940 100% 0% $2,613 $1,453
1/2002 Ford F-150 4x4 2001 $11,448 H $11,448 5 16 $15,715 -11 10 $19,157 100% 0% $2,791 $1,552
1|Chevy Truck - 1500 2003 $11,298 H $11,298 5 14 $14,908 -9 10 $18,173 100% 0% $2,647 $1,472
1[2004 Chevy 1500 Pickup 2004 $11,265 H $11,265 5 13 $14,573 -8 10 $17,764 100% 0% $2,588 $1,439
12004 Chevy 4 WD Pickup 2004 $18,421 H $18,421 5 13 $23,829 -8 10 $29,047 100% 0% $4,231 $2,353
12005 Chevy ID#1GBHK24U95E333348 2005 $17,911 H $17,911 5 12 $22,715 -7 10 $27,690 100% 0% $4,034 $2,243
12006 Chevy Colorado 2006 $12,068 H $12,068 5 11 $15,005 -6 10 $18,291 100% 0% $2,664 $1,482
1|2007 Chevy CK2500 Regular Cab 2007 $18,097 H $18,097 5 10 $22,061 -5 10 $26,892 100% 0% $3,917 $2,179
1]2008 Chevy 1500 2008 $14,480 H $14,480 5 9 $17,305 -4 10 $21,095 100% 0% $3,073 $1,709
1|Sundowner Trailer 2010 $4,588 H $4,588 5 7 $5,270 2 10 $6,425 100% 0% $936 $520
1|Re-manufactured Long block Unit #32 2013 $3,489 H $3,489 20 4 $3,777 16 17 $5,288 100% 0% $770 $242
12016 Ford F-150 2016 $14,158 H $14,158 10 1 $14,441 9 10 $17,604 100% 0% $2,564 $1,426

$0

SHOP & FIELD EQUIPMENT (3) S0

1|Fully Depreciated 1965 $1,082 H $1,082 10 52 $3,030 -42 5 100% 0% $0
1|Tool Set 2017 $5,550 © $5,550 10 0 $5,550 10 10 $6,765 100% 0% $985 $548
1|New Radio System 1989 $7,192 H $7,192 10 28 $12,521 -18 5 $13,825 100% 0% $2,014 $2,307

1|Steam Cleaner (Pressure Washer) 1989 $1,886 H $1,886 10 28 $3,284 -18 5 100% 0% $0

1|welder 1991 $1,515 H $1,515 10 26 $2,535 -16 5 100% 0% $0
1|Backhoe 1991 $27,385 H $27,385 20 26 $45,827 -6 5 $50,597 75% 25% $5,528 $6,334
1|Dump Truck 1991 $26,610 H $26,610 20 26 $44,530 -6 5 $49,164 75% 25% $5,371 $6,154
1|Tilt-bed Trailer 1992 $4,775 H $4,775 10 25 $7,833 -15 5 $8,648 100% 0% $1,260 $1,443
1|Dozer 1996 $13,655 H $13,655 5 21 $20,697 -16 5 $22,851 100% 0% $3,329 $3,814
1|Mini Excavator 2000 $22,535 H $22,535 20 17 $31,555 3 5 $34,839 100% 0% $5,075 $5,815
1|IR Portable Air Compressor 2003 $7,308 H $7,308 20 14 $9,643 6 7 $11,077 100% 0% $1,614 $1,305
1|2008 Chevy Truck 3500 1 ton Dump Truck 2008 $26,551 H $26,551 10 9 $31,731 il 5 $35,033 100% 0% $5,103 $5,847
1|Clark Equip.-excavator 2010 $23,678 H $23,678 20 7 $27,198 13 14 $35,887 100% 0% $5,228 $2,028
1|Meters 2014 $6,687 H $6,687 20 3 $7,096 17 18 $10,135 100% 0% $1,476 $435
1|Ditch Witch FX30 Vac Trailer 2015 $30,886 H $30,886 20 2 $32,134 18 19 $46,813 75% 25% $5,114 $1,418
1|Rammer Small Compactor 2016 $4,105 H $4,105 20 il $4,187 19 20 $6,221 100% 0% $906 $237

$0




GENERAL PLANT (3) $0
1|Office Building 1976 $137,335 H $137,335 40 41 $309,307 -1 15 $416,286 25% 75% $15,160 $5,455
1|Chip, Seal Parking Lot 1985 $2,953 H $2,953 10 32 $5,565 -22 1 $5,677 100% 0% $827 $4,850
1|Yard Fence 1986 $3,088 H $3,088 10 31 $5,704 -21 5 $6,298 100% 0% $917 $1,051
1|Generator & Electrical 1986 $2,210 H $2,210 20 31 $4,084 -11 5 100% 0% $0
1|Gas Heat/Air System 1987 $1,650 H $1,650 20 30 $2,989 -10 5 100% 0% $0
1|Rheem Cooling & Heating Unit 1989 $1,751 H $1,751 20 28 $3,048 -8 5 100% 0% $0
1|Metal Building 1990 $5,811 H $5,811 20 27 $9,918 -7 5 $10,950 100% 0% $1,595 $1,828
1|Office & Shop Privacy Fence 2004 $6,080 H $6,080 10 13 $7,865 -3 5 $8,683 100% 0% $1,265 $1,449
1[Hangtown Fence - Add'l Ground Fencing 2006 $4,895 H $4,895 10 11 $6,086 -1 5 $6,720 100% 0% $979 $1,122
1|Carpet Replacement 2007 $3,724 H $3,724 7 10 $4,540 -3 5 $5,012 100% 0% $730 $837
1|Partial Re-roof of Main Maintenance Building 2016 $3,088 H $3,088 30 1 $3,149 29 30 $5,704 100% 0% $831 $136
$0
OFFICE EQUIPMENT (3) S0
1|Computer Network 2001 $3,254 H $3,254 10 16 $4,468 -6 5 100% 0% $0
1[Canon Copier 2002 $4,795 H $4,795 10 15 $6,454 -5 5 $7,125 100% 0% $1,038 $1,189
1|Phone System (Equip&Software) 2002 $4,744 H $4,744 3 15 $6,385 -12 5 $7,049 100% 0% $1,027 $1,177
1|Dell Server &software 2005 $2,185 H $2,185 3 12 $2,771 -9 5 100% 0% $0
1[5 DELL Computers 2007 $4,637 H $4,637 5 10 $5,652 -5 5 $6,240 100% 0% $909 $1,042
$0
DISTRIBUTION (3) $0
38|Pressure Reducing Valves 1987 $2,455 H $93,278 40 30 $168,960 10 10 $205,961 50% 50% $15,001 $8,343
172 | Air Relief Valves 1987 $709 H $121,970 40 30 $220,932 10 10 $269,315 50% 50% $19,615 $10,909
422|Isolation Valves 1987 $2,201 H $966,816 40 30 $1,751,254 10 10[  $2,134,769 25% 75% $77,742 $43,237
247 |Other Valves 1987 $2,018 H $498,518 40 30 $902,997 10 10 $1,100,748 25% 75% $40,086 $22,294
581 |Firehydrants 1987 $3,273 H|  $1,901,558 60 30 $3,444,410 30 35|  $6,888,439 25% 75% $250,858 $34,170
20|Pressure Reducing Valves 2017 $5,000 C $100,000 40 0 $100,000 40 40 $220,804 50% 50% $16,082 $1,856
0
Subtotal Existing Capital Assets $45159,718 $78,663,010 $135559,165 26% 1% 73% 35,11&036 $1,544,026]




Capital Replacement Program

Exhibit 11

Georgetown Divide PUD IW Date: 10/20/17
System Number: 910013
Service Connections: 408
Unit Cost
(Historic, Cost Normal Planned Estimated Fund Fund
Year Currentor  Type (H, Estimated Estimated Current Estimated Remaining  Remaining Estimated  Fund with  with with Existing  Annual Reserve
Qty Component Acquired Future) C,F) Historic Cost Life Age Current Cost Life Life Future Cost Cash Grant Loan  Reserves Required
Existing Capital Replacement Program

SOURCE OF SUPPLY PLANT #5100 $0
1|Mark Edson Dam & Stumpy Meadows Res. 1962 $400,015 H $400,015 100 55 $1,188,737 45 50 $3,199,589 10% 50% 40% $14,980 $4,664
1|Tunnel Hill Tunnel 1962 $84,931 H $84,931 100 55 $252,393 45 46 $627,604 25% 20% 55% $7,346 $2,543
1|Kaiser Siphon Replacement (1) 1964 $315,852 C $108,259 100 53 $315,852 a7 46 $785,402 25% 20% 55% $9,193 $3,183
1|Sand Trap Siphon (1) 1964 $128,375 C $44,001 100 53 $128,375 47 48 $332,115 50% 50% $7,775 $2,550
1|Up Country Ditch Imp (Pilot Ck Diversion to Tunnell Hill Inlet) (1) 1964 $1,598,171 C $547,779 100 53 $1,598,171 a7 56 $4,844,320 10% 50% 40% $22,681 $6,090

$0

$0

5200 SHARED $0
1|Cabin Waste Gate Replacement (1) 1972 $23,700 C $9,548 40 45 $23,700 4 20 $35,217 100% 0% $1,649 $1,517
1|Bacon Creek Pipe (1) 1964 $201,549 C $69,082 40 53 $201,549 -13 20 $299,491 50% 50% $7,011 $6,450
1|Buckeye Conduit (1) 1964 $355,352 C $121,798 40 53 $355,352 -13 20 $528,035 25% 75% $6,180 $5,686
1|Up Country Ditch (Penn Stock Bypass to Shroeder Conduit) (1) 1964 $587,070 C $201,220 40 53 $587,070 -13 5 $648,172 25% 75% $7,587 $30,250
1|Main Ditch #1 Imp (1) 1964 $1,631,992 C $559,371 40 53 $1,631,992 -13 5 $1,801,851 10% 50% 40% $8,436 $33,636
1|Main Ditch #2 to ALT (1) 1964 $380,682 C $130,480 40 53 $380,682 -13 5 $420,304 25% 75% $4,920 $19,615

$0

$0

5200 IRRIGATION ONLY (1) $0
1|Main Ditch #2 below ALT 1964 $663,376 C $227,375 40 53 $663,376 -13 10 $808,652 25% 75% $9,465 $18,377
1|Pilot Hill Ditch (Main) 1964 $429,126 C $147,084 40 53 $429,126 -13 10 $523,102 50% 50% $12,246 $23,775
1|Pilot Hill Ditch 1964( $1,070,876 C $367,047 40 53 $1,070,876 -13 10 $1,305,392 25% 75% $15,279 $29,665
1|Kelsey Ditch #1 1964 $571,625 C $195,927 40 53 $571,625 -13 10 $696,808 25% 75% $8,156 $15,835
1|Kelsey Ditch #2 Imp 1964 $1,112,565 c $381,336 40 53 $1,112,565 -13 10 $1,356,211 25% 75% $15,874 $30,820
1|Spanish Dry Diggins Ditch 1964 $37,375 C $12,810 40 53 $37,375 -13 10 $45,560 100% 0% $2,133 $4,141
1|Taylor Mine Ditch 1964 $36,563 C $12,532 40 53 $36,563 -13 10 $44,570 100% 0% $2,087 $4,051

$0

$0

5300 - Lake Walton WTP $0

0|Lake Walton Plant Replacement (4) 1992 S0 c $0 50 25 $0 25 25 25% 75% $0

0[Raw Water Bypass (1) 1974 S0 c $0 40 43 $0 -3 19 25% 75% $0

0|Lake Walton Outlet Works (1) 1974 S0 c $0 40 43 $0 -3 19 100% 0% $0

0(Lake Walton Dredging (1) 1974 S0 c $0 40 25 $0 15 22 25% 75% $0

43 -43 $0

5300 - AUBURN LAKE TRAILS PLANT $0

O|ALT Water Treatment Plant (4) 2018 S0 (¢ $0 50 -1 $0 51 59 25% 75% $0

$0

$0

5400 T & D METERS & METER BOXES $0

0|Automated Meter Reading and Meter Replacement Project (5) 2018 $0 c $0 20 -1 $0 21 2 25% 75% $0

$0

T & D TREATED WATER #5400 (2) $0

0|Angel Camp Tank (0.5 MG) 1974 S0 c $0 40 43 $0 -3 10 25% 75% $0

0|Deer Ravine Tank (0.25 MG) 1974 S0 c $0 40 43 $0 -3 10 50% 50% $0

0[Pilot Hill Tank (0.47 MG) 1974 S0 c $0 40 43 $0 -3 10 25% 75% $0

0|Black Ridge Road Tank (0.06 MG) 1974 S0 c $0 40 43 $0 -3 10 75% 25% $0

0|Hotchkiss Hill Tank (0.06 MG) 1974 $0 c $0 40 43 $0 -3 10 75% 25% $0




0|Spanish Dry Diggins Tank (0.2 MG) 1971 S0 C $0 40 46 $0 -6 10 50% 50% $0
0|Black Oak Mine Tank (0.3 MG) 1974 S0 C $0 40 43 $0 -3 10 25% 75% $0
0|Garden Park Tank (0.2 MG) 1974 S0 c $0 40 43 $0 -3 10 50% 50% $0
0|Kelsey Tank (0.21 MG) 1974 ) C $0 40 43 $0 -3 10 50% 50% $0
0|Hotchkiss Hill Subtank (0.06 MG) 1974 S0 C $0 40 43 $0 -3 10 75% 25% $0
0|Black Ridge Road Pump Station 1974 S0 (¢ $0 40 43 $0 -3 5 75% 25% $0
0|Chipmunk Trail Pump Station 1974 $0 (¢ $0 40 43 $0 -3 5 75% 25% $0
0|Reservoir Road Pump Station 1974 $0 c $0 40 43 $0 -3 5 75% 25% $0
0]4-Inch Pipelines (42,130 AC, 50,771 PVC If) 1974 $0 c $0 60 43 $0 17 15 10% 90% $0
0]6-Inch Pipelines (175,142 AC, 3,981 DI, 235,640 PVC If) 1974 $0 c $0 60 43 $0 17 15 10% 90% $0
0]8-Inch Pipelines (42,068 AC, 85,394 PVC If) 1974 $0 c $0 60 43 $0 17 15 10% 90% $0
0]10-Inch Pipelines (36,484 AC, 10,359 PVC If) 1974 $0 c $0 60 43 $0 17 15 10% 90% $0
0]12-Inch Pipelines (42,346 AC If) 1974 $0 c $0 60 43 $0 17 15 10% 90% $0
S0
0|Highway 193/Sliger Mine Main Relocation (2) 1974 $0 c $0 60 43 $0 17 5 50% 50% $0
0| Tank Telemetry Enhancements (2) 2020 $0 c $0 15 -3 $0 18 5 100% 0% $0
$0
$0
TRANSPORTATION EQUIPMENT (3) $0
1|Mobile Radios 1971 $668 H $668 5 46 $1,661 -41 5 100% 0% $0
1| Truck 2017 $6,300 c $6,300 15 0 $6,300 15 15 $8,479 100% 0% $397 $500
1|Excavator 2017 $9,100 © $9,100 15 0 $9,100 15 15 $12,247 100% 0% $573 $723
1|Trailer for excavator 2017 $1,750 c $1,750 20 0 $1,750 20 20 100% 0% $0
1|Trailer & Hookups 1991 $1,560 H $1,560 15 26 $2,610 -11 10 100% 0% $0
1{1998 Ford Pickup Truck 1998 $1,703 H $1,703 15 19 $2,481 -4 10 100% 0% $0
1]1999 Ford F150 Pickup 1999 $1,697 H $1,697 15 18 $2,424 -3 10 100% 0% $0
12002 Ford F-150 4x4 2001 $1,886 H $1,886 15 16 $2,588 il 10 100% 0% $0
1[Chevy Truck - 1500 2003 $1,861 H $1,861 15 14 $2,455 1 10 100% 0% $0
1{2004 Chevy 1500 Pickup 2004 $1,855 H $1,855 15 13 $2,400 2 10 100% 0% $0
1]2004 Chevy 4 WD Pickup 2004 $3,034 H $3,034 15 13 $3,925 2 10 100% 0% $0
12005 Chevy ID#1GBHK24U95E333348 2005 $2,950 H $2,950 15 12 $3,741 3 10 100% 0% $0
1{2006 Chevy Colorado 2006 $1,988 H $1,988 15 11 $2,471 4 10 100% 0% $0
1]2007 Chevy CK2500 Regular Cab 2007 $2,981 H $2,981 15 10 $3,633 5 10 100% 0% $0
1[2008 Chevy 1500 2008 $2,385 H $2,385 15 9 $2,850 6 10 100% 0% $0
1|Sundowner Trailer 2010 $756 H $756 15 7 $868 8 10 100% 0% $0
1|Re-manufactured Long block Unit #32 2013 $575 H $575 20 4 $622 16 17 100% 0% $0
1)2016 Ford F-150 2016 $2,332 H $2,332 15 a $2,379 14 10 100% 0% $0
$0
SHOP & FIELD EQUIPMENT (3) $0
$178 5 160% 0% $0
1|Tool Set 2017 $914 C $914 10 0 $914 10 10 100% 0% $0
1|New Radio System 1989 $1,185 H $1,185 10 28 $2,062 -18 5 100% 0% $0
1[Steam Cleaner (Pressure Washer) 1989 $311 H $311 10 28 $541 -18 5 100% 0% $0
1|Welder 1991 $249 H $249 10 26 $418 -16 5 100% 0% $0
1|Backhoe 1991 $4,511 H $4,511 20 26 $7,548 -6 5 $8,334 75% 25% $293 $1,167
1[Dump Truck 1991 $4,383 H $4,383 20 26 $7,334 -6 5 $8,098 75% 25% $284 $1,134
1|Tilt-bed Trailer 1992 $786 H $786 15 25 $1,290 -10 5 100% 0% $0
1|Dozer 1996 $2,249 H $2,249 20 21 $3,409 il 5 100% 0% $0
1|Mini Excavator 2000 $3,712 H $3,712 20 17 $5,197 3 5 $5,738 100% 0% $269 $1,071
1[IR Portable Air Compressor 2003 $1,204 H $1,204 20 14 $1,588 6 7 100% 0% $0
1[2008 Chevy Truck 3500 1 ton Dump Truck 2008 $4,373 H $4,373 15 9 $5,226 6 5 $5,770 100% 0% $270 $1,077
1|Clark Equip.-excavator 2010 $3,900 H $3,900 20 7 $4,480 13 14 $5,911 100% 0% $277 $376
1|Meters 2014 $1,101 H $1,101 20 3 $1,169 17 18 100% 0% $0
1[Ditch Witch FX30 Vac Trailer 2015 $5,087 H $5,087 20 2 $5,293 18 19 $7,710 75% 25% $271 $264
1|Rammer Small Compactor 2016 $676 H $676 20 il $690 19 20 100% 0% $0




$0

GENERAL PLANT (3) $0
1|office Building 1976 $22,620 H $22,620 40 4 $50,945 -1 15 $68,565 25% 75% 4803 $1,011
1|Chip, Seal Parking Lot 1985 $486 H $486 10 32 $917 -22 1 100% 0% $0
1|Yard Fence 1986 $509 H $509 10 31 $940 21 5 100% 0% $0
1|Generator & Electrical 1986 $364 H $364 20 31 $673 -11 5 100% 0% $0
1|Gas Heat/Air System 1987 $272 H $272 20 30 $492 -10 5 100% 0% $0
1|Rheem Cooling & Heating Unit 1989 $288 H $288 20 28 $502 -8 5 100% 0% $0
1|Metal Building 1990 $957 H $957 20 27 $1,634 -7 5 100% 0% $0
1[Office & Shop Privacy Fence 2004 $1,001 H $1,001 10 13 $1,295 -3 5| 100% 0% $0
1[Hangtown Fence - Add'l Ground Fencing 2006 $806 H $806 10 11 $1,002 -1 5 100% 0% $0
1|Carpet Replacement 2007 $613 H $613 7 10 $748 -3 5 100% 0% $0
1[Partial Re-roof of Main Maintenance Building 2016 $509 H $509 30 il $519 29 30 100% 0% $0

$0

OFFICE EQUIPMENT (3) $0
0[Computer Network 2001 $536 H $0 10 16 $0 6 5 100% 0% $0
1|Canon Copier 2002 $790 H $790 10 15 $1,063 5 5 100% 0% $0
1|Phone System (Equip&Software) 2002 $781 H $781 3 15 $1,052 -12 5 100% 0% $0

$360 5 100% 0% $0
T|5 DELL Computers 2007 $764 H $764 5 10 $931 5 5 100% 0% S0
$0
$0
Existing Capital Replacement Program $3,731,376 $10,749,508 $18,433,245 $166,432 $250,172,




Five Year Forecasted Budget Date: 10/20/17| Exhibit 2T
Georgetown Divide PUD TW Inflation Factor (%): 2.00
No Admin System Number: 910013
EXPENSES AND SOURCES OF FUNDS 2017 2018 | 2019 | 2020 2021
OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE EXPENSES
Personnel Related 1,532,146.01| 1,596,007/.14] 1,663,530.0/] 1,/27,504.03 1,762,054.11
Materials and Supplies 147,315.56 154,681.34 162,415.40 170,536.17 173,946.90
Rental/Durable 9,191.05 9,650.60 10,133.13 10,639.79 10,852.58
Staff Development 5,655.44 5,938.21 6,235.12 6,546.88 6,677.82
Travel--Conference 2,000.00 2,100.00 2,205.00 2,315.25 2,361.56
Utilities 167,485.44 175,859.71 184,652.69 193,885.33 197,763.03
Vehicle & Equipment Maintenance 2,627.81 2,759.20 2,897.16 3,042.02 3,102.86
Vehicle Operations 20,484.03 21,508.23 22,583.64 23,712.82 24,187.08
Building Maintenance 1,000.00 1,050.00 1,102.50 1,157.63 1,180.78
Govt. Reg./Lab Fees 53,700.85 56,385.90 59,205.19 62,165.45 63,408.76
Outside Service/Consultants 22,721.92 23,858.01 25,050.91 26,303.46 26,829.53
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Operation and Maintenance Expenses:| 1,964,328.11| 2,049,798.34| 2,140,010.83| 2,227,808.82 2,272,365.00
GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Low Income Subsidy 35,000.00 35,700.00 36,414.00 37,142.28 37,885.13
Debt Reserve 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Operating Reserve 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Emergency Reserve 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Existing Capital Replacement Program 1,532,603.28| 1,528,353.70( 1,359,521.48| 1,359,521.48 1,359,521.48
Funded Project Replacement Program 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Future Capital Improvement Program 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Debt Payments (Principle + Interest) 59,348.26 59,348.26 144,112.12 144,112.12 144,112.12
Legal, Audit, Insurance, 35,558.69 37,336.62 39,203.45 41,163.63 41,986.90
Other General & Administrative 17,985.74 18,885.02 19,829.27 20,820.74 21,237.15
Total General and Administrative Expenses:| 1,680,495.97( 1,679,623.61| 1,599,080.33| 1,602,760.25 1,604,742.78
TOTAL EXPENSES 3,644,824.07| 3,729,421.95| 3,739,091.16| 3,830,569.07 3,877,107.78
SOURCE OF FUNDS / REVENUES RECEIVED
Water Revenue 2,753,457.25| 2,916,226.12| 3,088,228.77| 3,256,361.53 3,419,141.54
Property Tax 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
SMUD, Hydro, Leases, Interest, etc 293,300.00 299,166.00 305,149.32 311,252.31 317,477.35
Hydro -60,000.00 -61,200.00 -62,424.00 -63,672.48 -64,945.93
Capital Facility Charges 10,000.00 10,200.00 10,404.00 10,612.08 10,824.32
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
TOTAL REVENUE (Lines 29 through 37): 2,996,757.25| 3,164,392.12| 3,341,358.09| 3,514,553.43 3,682,497.29
NET LOSS OR GAIN: -648,066.82| -565,029.83| -397,733.07| -316,015.64 -194,610.49
NET CASH FLOW (Contribution to Reserves) 884,536.46 963,323.87 961,788.40( 1,043,505.84 1,164,910.98




Cash Budget Date: 10/20/17| Exhibit 2|
Georgetown Divide PUD IW Inflation Factor (%): 2.00
System Number: 910013
EXPENSES AND SOURCES OF FUNDS 2017 2018 | 2019 | 2020 2021
OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE EXPENSES
Personnel Related 790,287.84] 829,470.96 871,328.64] 907,688.96 925,842.74
Materials and Supplies 28,784.44 30,223.66 31,734.85 33,321.59 33,988.02
Rental/Durable 15,808.95 16,599.40 17,429.37 18,300.84 18,666.86
Staff Development 1,932.64 2,029.27 2,130.73 2,237.27 2,282.02
Travel--Conference 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Utilities 8,191.32 8,600.88 9,030.92 9,482.47 9,672.12
Vehicle & Equipment Maintenance 2,372.19 2,490.80 2,615.34 2,746.10 2,801.02
Vehicle Operations 15,015.97 15,766.77 16,555.11 17,382.87 17,730.53
Building Maintenance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Govt. Reg./Lab Fees 27,199.15 28,559.10 29,987.06 31,486.41 32,116.14
Outside Service/Consultants 29,578.08 31,056.99 32,609.84 34,240.33 34,925.13
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Operation and Maintenance Expenses: 919,170.58 964,797.84| 1,013,421.86| 1,056,886.84( 1,078,024.58
GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
0.00
Debt Reserve 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Operating Reserve 1,753.04 1,753.04 1,753.04 1,753.04 1,753.04
Emergency Reserve 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Existing Capital Replacement Program 250,172.04 250,172.04 250,172.04 250,172.04 250,172.04
Funded Project Replacement Program 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Future Capital Improvement Program 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Debt Payments (Principle + Interest) 1,043.74 1,043.74 0.00 0.00 0.00
Legal, Audit, Insurance, 15,726.75 16,513.09 17,338.74 18,205.68 18,569.79
Other General & Administrative 14,074.21 14,777.92 15,516.82 16,292.66 16,618.51
Total General and Administrative Expenses: 282,769.78 284,259.82 284,780.63 286,423.41 287,113.38
TOTAL EXPENSES 1,201,940.36| 1,249,057.66| 1,298,202.50| 1,343,310.26| 1,365,137.96
SOURCE OF FUNDS / REVENUES RECEIVED
Water Revenue 612,989.58 6/4,288.54 /741,717.39 815,389.13 897,478.05
Property Tax 336,000.00 342,720.00 349,574.40 356,565.89 363,697.21
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
TOTAL REVENUE (Lines 29 through 37): 948,989.58( 1,017,008.54( 1,091,291.79( 1,172,455.02( 1,261,175.25
NET LOSS OR GAIN: -252,950.77| -232,049.12| -206,910.70| -170,855.23| -103,962.71
NET CASH FLOW (Contribution to Reserves) -1,025.70 19,875.95 45,014.37 81,069.84 147,962.37




Cash Budget pate:|  10/20/17| Exhibit 3T
Georgetown Divide PUD TW Inflation Factor (%): 2.00
System Number: 910013
EXPENSES AND SOURCES OF FUNDS 2017 2018 | 2019 | 2020 2021
OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE EXPENSES
Personnel Related 2,032,357.05| 2,115,849.60( 2,204,051./5| 2,288,147.45 2,333,910.39
Materials and Supplies 147,315.56 154,681.34 162,415.40 170,536.17 173,946.90
Rental/Durable 9,191.05 9,650.60 10,133.13 10,639.79 10,852.58
Staff Development 8,614.04 9,044.74 9,496.98 9,971.83 10,171.26
Travel--Conference 8,163.75 8,571.93 9,000.53 9,450.56 9,639.57
Utilities 181,660.27 190,743.28 200,280.45 210,294.47 214,500.36
Vehicle & Equipment Maintenance 2,627.81 2,759.20 2,897.16 3,042.02 3,102.86
Vehicle Operations 20,484.03 21,508.23 22,583.64 23,712.82 24,187.08
Building Maintenance 7,074.42 7,428.14 7,799.55 8,189.52 8,353.31
Govt. Reg./Lab Fees 56,059.16 58,862.11 61,805.22 64,895.48 66,193.39
Outside Service/Consultants 60,474.78 63,498.52 66,673.45 70,007.12 71,407.26
Low Income Fund 35,000.00 35,000.00 35,000.00 35,000.00 35,000.00
Total Operation and Maintenance Expenses:| 2,569,021.91| 2,677,597.69| 2,792,137.25| 2,903,887.22 2,961,264.97
GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Retiree Health Premium 97,190.68 102,050.22 107,152.73 112,510.37 114,760.57
Debt Reserve 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Operating Reserve 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Emergency Reserve 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Existing Capital Replacement Program 1,532,603.00| 1,532,603.00( 1,532,603.00| 1,532,603.00 1,532,603.00
Funded Project Replacement Program 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Future Capital Improvement Program 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Debt Payments (Principle + Interest) 59,348.26 59,348.26 144,112.12 144,112.12 144,112.12
Legal, Audit, Insurance, 131,891.81 138,486.40 145,410.72 152,681.25 155,734.88
Other General & Administrative 111,153.73 116,711.41 122,546.98 128,674.33 131,247.82
Total General and Administrative Expenses:| 1,932,187.48( 1,949,199.29| 2,051,825.55| 2,070,581.08 2,078,458.39
TOTAL EXPENSES 4,501,209.39| 4,626,796.98( 4,843,962.80( 4,974,468.30 5,039,723.36
SOURCE OF FUNDS / REVENUES RECEIVED
Water Revenue 2,676,332.82| 2,838,471.64| 3,010,237.50] 3,176,352.03 3,335,080.67
Property Tax 1,006,000.00] 1,036,180.00( 1,067,265.40( 1,099,283.36 1,132,261.86
SMUD, Hydro, Leases, Interest, etc 293,300.00 299,166.00 305,149.32 311,252.31 317,477.35
Hydro -60,000.00 -61,200.00 -62,424.00 -63,672.48 -64,945.93
Capital Facilities Charge 10,000.00 10,200.00 10,404.00 10,612.08 10,824.32
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
TOTAL REVENUE (Lines 29 through 37): 3,925,632.82( 4,122,817.64| 4,330,632.22| 4,533,827.30 4,730,698.28
NET LOSS OR GAIN: -575,576.56| -503,979.34| -513,330.59| -440,641.00 -309,025.08
NET CASH FLOW (Contribution to Reserves) 957,026.44| 1,028,623.66( 1,019,272.41( 1,091,962.00 1,223,577.92




Cash Budget Date: 10/20/17| Exhibit 3l
Georgetown Divide PUD IW Inflation Factor (%): 2.00
System Number: 910013
EXPENSES AND SOURCES OF FUNDS 2017 2018 | 2019 | 2020 2021
OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE EXPENSES
Personnel Related 844,364.71 885,670.15 929,763.42 968,299.06 987,665.04
Materials and Supplies 28,784.44 30,223.66 31,734.85 33,321.59 33,988.02
Rental/Durable 15,808.95 16,599.40 17,429.37 18,300.84 18,666.86
Staff Development 2,252.49 2,365.11 2,483.37 2,607.54 2,659.69
Travel--Conference 666.35 699.67 734.65 771.38 786.81
Utilities 9,723.73 10,209.92 10,720.41 11,256.43 11,481.56
Vehicle & Equipment Maintenance 2,372.19 2,490.80 2,615.34 2,746.10 2,801.02
Vehicle Operations 15,015.97 15,766.77 16,555.11 17,382.87 17,730.53
Building Maintenance 656.69 689.53 724.00 760.21 775.41
Govt. Reg./Lab Fees 27,454.10 28,826.80 30,268.14 31,781.55 32,417.18
Outside Service/Consultants 33,659.47 35,342.45 37,109.57 38,965.05 39,744.35
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Operation and Maintenance Expenses: 980,759.10| 1,028,884.25| 1,080,138.23| 1,126,192.62| 1,148,716.47
GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Ritiree Health Premium 10,507.10 11,032.46 11,584.08 12,163.28 12,406.55
Debt Reserve 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Operating Reserve 3,292.75 3,292.75 3,292.75 3,292.75 3,292.75
Emergency Reserve 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Existing Capital Replacement Program 250,172.04 250,172.04 250,172.04 250,172.04 250,172.04
Funded Project Replacement Program 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Future Capital Improvement Program 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Debt Payments (Principle + Interest) 1,043.74 1,043.74 0.00 0.00 0.00
Legal, Audit, Insurance, 26,141.14 27,448.20 28,820.61 30,261.64 30,866.87
Other General & Administrative 24,146.43 25,353.75 26,621.44 27,952.51 28,511.56
Total General and Administrative Expenses: 315,303.20 318,342.93 320,490.91 323,842.22 325,249.76
TOTAL EXPENSES 1,296,062.30| 1,347,227.18| 1,400,629.14| 1,450,034.83| 1,473,966.23
SOURCE OF FUNDS / REVENUES RECEIVED
Water Revenue 479,543.05 527,497.35 580,247.09 638,2/1.80 702,098.98
Property Tax 562,000.00 573,240.00 584,704.80 596,398.90 608,326.87
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
TOTAL REVENUE (Lines 29 through 37): 1,041,543.05| 1,100,737.35| 1,164,951.89| 1,234,670.70| 1,310,425.85
NET LOSS OR GAIN: -254,519.25| -246,489.83| -235,677.25| -215,364.14| -163,540.38
NET CASH FLOW (Contribution to Reserves) -1,054.46 6,974.96 17,787.54 38,100.65 89,924.41




Split of cash and investments between (4) Reserve Types and Treaded/Irrigation water Exhibit 4

Reserves
Debt Operating  Emergency Capital Other/WW
SMUD Fund $ 324,069 $ 324,069
CABY Grant $ (29,222) $ - $ (29,222)
General Fund $ 1,175,636 $1,175,636
Insurance Reserve $ - $ -
Dental/Optical $ - $ -
Retiree $ 538,071 $ 538,071
Stewart Mine $ 28,825 $ 28,825
Bayne Road & Other Assessment Districts $ 65,804 $ 65,804
Georgetown-Buckeye Water Improvement $ - $ -
District $ - $ -
Water Development $ 399,753 $ 399,753
Bond & Interest for Debt Service $ -
Buffalo Pipeline $ -
Sand Trap Siphon $ -
Stumpy Meadows Emergency $ 1,044,130 $1,044,130
Reserve Fund (SMERF) $ -
Capital Reserve Cash Clearing $ 1,029,266 $ 1,029,266
Pilot Hill North $ (7,481) $ (7,481)
Pilot Hill South $ 50,136 $ 50,136
Kelsey North $ 119,154 $ -
Kelsey South $ - $ -
State Revolving Fund $ 7,499 $ 7,499
Federal Emergency Management Agency $ -
Wrench/Valve Deposit Fund $ -
Small Hydro Fund $ 592,262 $ 592,262
Pipeline Extension Holding Fund to 26 $ - $ -
Environmental Protection Agency $ 315,098 $ 315,098
Garden Valley Water Improvement District $ 71,574 $ 71574
Capital Facility Charges $ 1,679,822 $ 1,679,822
ALT - WTP Capital Reserve $ 766,122 $ 766,122
Auburn Lake Trails (ALT) Zone Fund $ 963,527 $ 963,527
ALT Tank Replacement Loans & Repair Activity  $ 33,791 $ 33,791
ALT CDS Reserve Connection Fund $ 181,840 $ 181,840
$ 9,349,676
Split of Reserves, based on average historic sales (Section C)
Sales % Debt Operating Emergency Capital
Treated Water $ 1,613,052 75% $ 216,357 $ 876,629 $ 778,569 $ 4,762,189
Irrigation Water $ 195,288 9% $ 106,131 $ 94259 $ 122,173
Other $ 354,905 16%
$ 2,163,245 100%
Red=Treated water only Green=Treated + Irrigation to be split according to prior sales $ in Section C
Reserve Definition Target
Debt Amount set aside per debt agreements Per agreement with lender
Operating Money in checking account 1.5 times revenue in a billing cycle (calculated from Buget)
Emergency Immediately accessible funds for emerger| Largest asset that could fail
Capital Funds to replace equipment when it wearqg As calculated in the CIP




Exhibit 5

Proposition 218 Certification

CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION
ARTICLE 13C (VOTER APPROVAL FOR LOCAL TAX LEVIES)

SECTION 1. Definitions. As used in this article:

(a) "General tax" means any tax imposed for general governmental purposes.

(b) "Local government' means any county, city, city and county, including
a charter city or county, any special district, or any other local or
regional governmental entity.

(c) "Special district"” means an agency of the State, formed pursuant to
general law or a special act, for the local performance of governmental or
proprietary functions with limited geographic boundaries including, but not
limited to, school districts and redevelopment agencies.

(d) "Special tax" means any tax imposed for specific purposes, including a
tax imposed for specific purposes, which is placed into a general fund.

CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION
ARTICLE 13C (VOTER APPROVAL FOR LOCAL TAX LEVIES)

SEC. 2. Local Government Tax Limitation. Notwithstanding any other
provision of this Constitution:

(a) All taxes imposed by any local government shall be deemed to be either
general taxes or special taxes. Special purpose districts or agencies,
including school districts, shall have no power to levy general taxes.

(b) No local government may impose, extend, or increase any general tax
unless and until that tax is submitted to the electorate and approved by a
majority vote. A general tax shall not be deemed to have been increased if
it is imposed at a rate not higher than the maximum rate so approved. The
election required by this subdivision shall be consolidated with a regularly
scheduled general election for members of the governing body of the local
government, except in cases of emergency declared by a unanimous vote of the
governing body.

(c) Any general tax imposed, extended, or increased, without voter
approval, by any local government on or after January 1, 1995, and prior to
the effective date of this article, shall continue to be imposed only if
approved by a majority vote of the voters voting in an election on the issue
of the imposition, which election shall be held within two years of the
effective date of this article and in compliance with subdivision (b).

(d) No local government may impose, extend, or increase any special tax
unless and until that tax is submitted to the electorate and approved by a
two-thirds vote. A special tax shall not be deemed to have been increased if
it is imposed at a rate not higher than the maximum rate so approved.

CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION
ARTICLE 13C (VOTER APPROVAL FOR LOCAL TAX LEVIES)

SEC. 3. Initiative Power for Local Taxes, Assessments, Fees and Charges.
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Constitution, including, but not
limited to, Sections 8 and 9 of Article 11, the initiative power shall not be
prohibited or otherwise limited in matters of reducing or repealing any local
tax, assessment, fee or charge. The power of initiative to affect local
taxes, assessments, fees and charges shall be applicable to all local
governments and neither the Legislature nor any local government charter



shall impose a signature requirement higher than that applicable to statewide
statutory initiatives.

CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION
ARTICLE 13D (ASSESSMENT AND PROPERTY-RELATED FEE REFORM)

SECTION 1. Application. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the
provisions of this article shall apply to all assessments, fees and charges,
whether imposed pursuant to state statute or local government charter
authority. Nothing in this article or Article XII1IC shall be construed to:

(a) Provide any new authority to any agency to impose a tax, assessment,
fee, or charge.

(b) Affect existing laws relating to the imposition of fees or charges as
a condition of property development.

(c) Affect existing laws relating to the imposition of timber
yield taxes.

CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION
ARTICLE 13D (ASSESSMENT AND PROPERTY-RELATED FEE REFORM)

SEC. 2. Definitions. As used in this article:

(a) ""Agency’™ means any local government as defined in subdivision (b) of
Section 1 of Article XIIIC.

(b) "Assessment" means any levy or charge upon real property by an agency
for a special benefit conferred upon the real property. "Assessment™
includes, but is not limited to, "special assessment,"” "benefit assessment,"
"maintenance assessment' and *‘special assessment tax.™

(c) "Capital cost" means the cost of acquisition, installation,
construction, reconstruction, or replacement of a permanent public
improvement by an agency.

(d) "District” means an area determined by an agency to contain all
parcels which will receive a special benefit from a proposed public
improvement or property-related service.

(e) "Fee'" or ''charge" means any levy other than an ad valorem tax, a
special tax, or an assessment, Imposed by an agency upon a parcel or upon a
person as an incident of property ownership, including a user fee or charge
for a property related service.

() "Maintenance and operation expenses' means the cost of rent, repair,
replacement, rehabilitation, fuel, power, electrical current, care, and
supervision necessary to properly operate and maintain a permanent public
improvement.

(9) "Property ownership™ shall be deemed to include tenancies of real
property where tenants are directly liable to pay the assessment, fee, or
charge in question.

(h) "Property-related service"™ means a public service having a direct
relationship to property ownership.

(i) "Special benefit" means a particular and distinct benefit over and
above general benefits conferred on real property located in the district or
to the public at large. General enhancement of property value does not
constitute "'special benefit."

CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION
ARTICLE 13D (ASSESSMENT AND PROPERTY-RELATED FEE REFORM)



SEC. 3. Property Taxes, Assessments, Fees and Charges Limited. (@) No tax,
assessment, fee, or charge shall be assessed by any agency upon any parcel of
property or upon any person as an incident of property ownership except:

(1) The ad valorem property tax imposed pursuant to Article X111 and
Article XI11A.

(2) Any special tax receiving a two-thirds vote pursuant to Section 4 of
Article XI1I1A.

(3) Assessments as provided by this article.

(4) Fees or charges for property related services as provided by this
article.

(b) For purposes of this article, fees for the provision of electrical or
gas service shall not be deemed charges or fees imposed as an incident of
property ownership.

CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION
ARTICLE 13D (ASSESSMENT AND PROPERTY-RELATED FEE REFORM)

SEC. 4. Procedures and Requirements for All Assessments. (&) An agency
which proposes to levy an assessment shall identify all parcels which will
have a special benefit conferred upon them and upon which an assessment will
be imposed. The proportionate special benefit derived by each identified
parcel shall be determined in relationship to the entirety of the capital
cost of a public improvement, the maintenance and operation expenses of a
public improvement, or the cost of the property related service being
provided. No assessment shall be imposed on any parcel which exceeds the
reasonable cost of the proportional special benefit conferred on that parcel.
Only special benefits are assessable, and an agency shall separate the
general benefits from the special benefits conferred on a parcel. Parcels
within a district that are owned or used by any agency, the State of
California or the United States shall not be exempt from assessment unless
the agency can demonstrate by clear and convincing evidence that those
publicly owned parcels in fact receive no special benefit.

(b) All assessments shall be supported by a detailed engineer®s report
prepared by a registered professional engineer certified by the State of
California.

(c) The amount of the proposed assessment for each identified parcel shall
be calculated and the record owner of each parcel shall be given written
notice by mail of the proposed assessment, the total amount thereof
chargeable to the entire district, the amount chargeable to the owner-"s
particular parcel, the duration of the payments, the reason for the
assessment and the basis upon which the amount of the proposed assessment was
calculated, together with the date, time, and location of a public hearing on
the proposed assessment. Each notice shall also include, in a conspicuous
place thereon, a summary of the procedures applicable to the completion,
return, and tabulation of the ballots required pursuant to subdivision (d),
including a disclosure statement that the existence of a majority protest, as
defined in subdivision (e), will result in the assessment not being imposed.

(d) Each notice mailed to owners of identified parcels within the district
pursuant to subdivision (c) shall contain a ballot which includes the
agency"s address for receipt of the ballot once completed by any owner
receiving the notice whereby the owner may indicate his or her name,
reasonable identification of the parcel, and his or her support or opposition
to the proposed assessment.

(e) The agency shall conduct a public hearing upon the proposed assessment
not less than 45 days after mailing the notice of the proposed assessment to
record owners of each identified parcel. At the public hearing, the agency
shall consider all protests against the proposed assessment and tabulate the



ballots. The agency shall not impose an assessment if there is a majority
protest. A majority protest exists if, upon the conclusion of the hearing,
ballots submitted in opposition to the assessment exceed the ballots
submitted in favor of the assessment. In tabulating the ballots, the ballots
shall be weighted according to the proportional financial obligation of the
affected property.

() In any legal action contesting the validity of any assessment, the
burden shall be on the agency to demonstrate that the property or properties
in question receive a special benefit over and above the benefits conferred
on the public at large and that the amount of any contested assessment is
proportional to, and no greater than, the benefits conferred on the property
or properties iIn question.

(g9) Because only special benefits are assessable, electors residing within
the district who do not own property within the district shall not be deemed
under this Constitution to have been deprived of the right to vote for any
assessment. |If a court determines that the Constitution of the United States
or other federal law requires otherwise, the assessment shall not be imposed
unless approved by a two-thirds vote of the electorate in the district in
addition to being approved by the property owners as required by subdivision

(e).

CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION
ARTICLE 13D (ASSESSMENT AND PROPERTY-RELATED FEE REFORM)

SEC. 5. Effective Date. Pursuant to subdivision (a) of Section 10 of
Article 11, the provisions of this article shall become effective the day
after the election unless otherwise provided. Beginning July 1, 1997, all
existing, new, or increased assessments shall comply with this article.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following assessments existing on the
effective date of this article shall be exempt from the procedures and
approval process set forth in Section 4:

(a) Any assessment imposed exclusively to finance the capital costs or
maintenance and operation expenses for sidewalks, streets, sewers, water,
flood control, drainage systems or vector control. Subsequent increases in
such assessments shall be subject to the procedures and approval process set
forth in Section 4.

(b) Any assessment imposed pursuant to a petition signed by the persons
owning all of the parcels subject to the assessment at the time the
assessment is initially imposed. Subsequent increases in such assessments
shall be subject to the procedures and approval process set forth in Section
4.

(c) Any assessment the proceeds of which are exclusively used to repay
bonded indebtedness of which the failure to pay would violate the Contract
Impairment Clause of the Constitution of the United States.

(d) Any assessment which previously received majority voter approval from
the voters voting in an election on the issue of the assessment. Subsequent
increases iIn those assessments shall be subject to the procedures and
approval process set forth in Section 4.

CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION
ARTICLE 13D (ASSESSMENT AND PROPERTY-RELATED FEE REFORM)

SEC. 6. Property Related Fees and Charges. (@) Procedures for New or
Increased Fees and Charges. An agency shall follow the procedures pursuant
to this section in imposing or increasing any fee or charge as defined
pursuant to this article, including, but not limited to, the following:



(1) The parcels upon which a fee or charge is proposed for imposition
shall be identified. The amount of the fee or charge proposed to be imposed
upon each parcel shall be calculated. The agency shall provide written
notice by mail of the proposed fee or charge to the record owner of each
identified parcel upon which the fee or charge is proposed for imposition,
the amount of the fee or charge proposed to be imposed upon each, the basis
upon which the amount of the proposed fee or charge was calculated, the
reason for the fee or charge, together with the date, time, and location of a
public hearing on the proposed fee or charge.

(2) The agency shall conduct a public hearing upon the proposed fee or
charge not less than 45 days after mailing the notice of the proposed fee or
charge to the record owners of each identified parcel upon which the fee or
charge is proposed for imposition. At the public hearing, the agency shall
consider all protests against the proposed fee or charge. |If written
protests against the proposed fee or charge are presented by a majority of
owners of the identified parcels, the agency shall not impose the fee or
charge.

(b) Requirements for Existing, New or Increased Fees and Charges a fee or
charge shall not be extended, imposed, or increased by any agency unless it
meets all of the following requirements:

(1) Revenues derived from the fee or charge shall not exceed the funds
required to provide the property related service.

(2) Revenues derived from the fee or charge shall not be used for any
purpose other than that for which the fee or charge was imposed.

(3) The amount of a fee or charge imposed upon any parcel or person as an
incident of property ownership shall not exceed the proportional cost of the
service attributable to the parcel.

(4) No fee or charge may be imposed for a service unless that service is
actually used by, or immediately available to, the owner of the property in
question. Fees or charges based on potential or future use of a service are
not permitted. Standby charges, whether characterized as charges or
assessments, shall be classified as assessments and shall not be imposed
without compliance with Section 4.

(5) No fee or charge may be imposed for general governmental services
including, but not limited to, police, fire, ambulance or library services,
where the service is available to the public at large in substantially the
same manner as it is to property owners. Reliance by an agency on any parcel
map, including, but not limited to, an assessor®s parcel map, may be
considered a significant factor in determining whether a fee or charge is
imposed as an incident of property ownership for purposes of this article.

In any legal action contesting the validity of a fee or charge, the burden
shall be on the agency to demonstrate compliance with this article.

(c) Voter Approval for New or Increased Fees and Charges. Except for fees
or charges for sewer, water, and refuse collection services, ho property
related fee or charge shall be imposed or increased unless and until that fee
or charge is submitted and approved by a majority vote of the property owners
of the property subject to the fee or charge or, at the option of the agency,
by a two-thirds vote of the electorate residing in the affected area. The
election shall be conducted not less than 45 days after the public hearing.
An agency may adopt procedures similar to those for increases In assessments
in the conduct of elections under this subdivision.

(d) Beginning July 1, 1997, all fees or charges shall comply with this
section.



Exhibit 6

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
ON PROPOSED WATER RATES FOR
WYNOLA WATER DISTRICT

Public Hearings, July 22, 2017 at 9:00 AM
at the xxx on xxx address in Wynola

WHY ARE YOU RECEIVING THIS NOTICE?

This notice is being furnished to you by the Wynola Water District [WWD] pursuant to the California Constitution
Article Xl Section D (also known as “Proposition 218"). Under terms of Proposition 218, the District is required to
notify property owners of proposed changes to property related fees such as water services. This letter serves as
notice that the WWD will hold a public hearing to consider changes to its current water rates.

WHAT DO WATER RATES FUND?

The WWD provides water services to about 72 customers. These water services must be financially self-sufficient.

Monthly rates paid by users of the system are the primary sources of revenue. All revenue generated from your utility
bills is used to maintain and operate the domestic water system and not any other WWD operation. These revenues
must meet all the costs such as electricity, chemicals, maintenance, licensing, fees, salaries of staff, repairs,
administrative costs and build up reserves for emergency repairs and future replacement of the system when it is time
to be replaced.

The WWD has not been able to build up enough reserve to fund the future replacement of its assets. Nor does the

WWD want to burden future generations with debt and a decrepit water system. The WWD believes in responsible
financial management of the current water system.

WHY ARE RATE CHANGES REQUIRED?

A complete budget review and analysis was done by an independent consultant. This analysis examined the cost to
provide water services with the objective of striking a better balance between fixed and variable revenues while
continuing to promote a fair and equitable rate structure for all utility customers. Rates need to be adequate to recover
the expenses, while ensuring that costs are equitably allocated, so that rates are fair and in proportion to the services
received by each user.

The WWD also recently completed an analysis of the capital replacement requirements. All the capital assets of the
WWD were reviewed and an estimated replacement timeframe and cost were assigned.

These replacements will be partially funded with loans and the proposed rate increases.
The last rate increase for the WWD was several years ago, but did not include an allocation of reserves for the future

replacement of deteriorating infrastructure. Since then the WWD has cut costs everywhere possible. Further cost
cutting is not possible or ill is advised.

HOW ARE RATES CALCULATED?

The proposed rate structure for water service fees has two components: (1) a fixed monthly base charge; and (2) a
variable (water consumption-based) usage rate. The first component is a fixed amount calculated to recover the
PUD's fixed costs of operating and maintaining the water system and is based on the potential volume of water a
customer could potential draw, as determined by the size of their water meter. The variable component of the rate
structure is based on water consumption.

Under normal operating procedures, the WWD should fund 100% of the fixed expenses with the Base Charges and
the rest with Usage Charges. The WWD Board decided to fund only 18% of the fixed expenses with Base Charges,
to bring the cost down of low volume users.



The Existing $150 “Water Availability Fee”, charged through the County on your property taxes will not change.

NEW RATES
Water rates will increase over a five-year period instead of a large one-time adjustment.

Quarterly Base Charge:
Base
Charge
for Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year5
15% 20% 25% 30%
$95.00 $109.50 $131.00 $164.00 $213.00

Usage Rate per 100 CF:

1/1/2018 | 1/1/2019 1/1/2020 1/1/2021 1/1/2023

15% 20% 25% 30%
$6.50 $7.48 $8.97 $11.21 $14.58

The above Base Charges and Usage Rates would go in effect on January 1, 2018.
These rates don't cover all the costs of the water system in the first year. But by the fifth year, the WWD will have a

balanced budget that covers the expenses and the required reserves. These rates are the absolute minimum that can
be justified as being prudent and necessary.

MEETING & PROTEST

The purpose of these public hearings is for the WWD Board to consider all comments about the rate increases to be
imposed on parcels within the District. As the record owner or renter of a parcel identified to be subject to the
imposition of the proposed rate increases, you may submit a written protest against the proposed rate increases.
Provided, however, if the identified parcel has more than one record owner or renter, only one written protest
will be counted. Each protest must (1) be in writing; (2) state that you are against the proposed rates (3) provide the
location of the parcel (by APN or WWD account #) and (4) include the original signature of the record owner or
renter submitting the protest. Protests submitted by e-mail, fax, or other electronic means will not be accepted.

Written protests must be submitted by mail to WWD, PO Box 193, Santa Ysabel, CA 92070, or in person at the public
hearing of July 22, 2017, so long as they are received prior to the start of the public hearing. WWD staff will not
accept protest letters as they all must be mailed to the PO Box or delivered in person at the July 22, 2017 public
hearing. Please identify on the front of the envelope of any protest, whether mailed or submitted in person, that the
enclosed letter is for the Proposed Increases of the Water Rates.

During the July 22, 2017 public hearing the written protests will be tallied by an impartial person. At the conclusion of
the public hearing of July 22, 2017, the WWD Board of Directors will consider adopting the proposed rate changes.
Oral comments at the public hearing will not qualify as formal protests unless accompanied by a written protest, and
delivered as stated above. If, at the beginning of the July 22, 2017 public hearing, written protests against the rate
increases, as outlined above, are not presented by a majority of the owners or renters of the identified parcels
upon which the new rates are proposed to be imposed, the WWD board will be authorized to impose the rate
increases as presented here.

Submitted on May 19, 2017, as instructed by the Board on May 13, 2017,
by Wynola Water District board of Directors:
Co-Lee Grev, President, Tim Taschler, Treasurer, Ron Placa, Clint Schepe and Bill Geckeler.



GDPUD Special Board Meeting of
10/24/2017
AGENDA ITEM NO. 5
Attachment 2

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-27

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE GEORGETOWN DIVIDE
PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO PREPARE AND
DELIVER NOTICE OF A PUBLIC HEARING PURSUANT TO PROPOSITION 218

WHEREAS, Georgetown Divide Public Utility District (“District”) provides treated and irrigation
water service to different customers; and

WHEREAS, the District has prepared a draft rate study to evaluate the costs of providing
treated and irrigation water service over the next five years; and

WHEREAS, the District must comply with the substantive and procedural requirements of
Proposition 218 when increasing water user charges and fees; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the requirements of Proposition 218, the District endeavors to
provide notice of a proposed rate increase to all property owners receiving treated or irrigation water;
and

WHEREAS, property owners and customers will be provided an opportunity to participate in
a public hearing regarding the proposed rate increase and have their opinions heard.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE DIRECTORS AS FOLLOWS:

The Directors hereby authorize the District General Manager to prepare and mail notice of a
public hearing, in accordance with the substantive and procedural requirements of Proposition 218, to
consider a rate increase for all treated and irrigation water customers in accordance with the draft rate
study.

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 24th day of October, 2017, by the foilowing vote:
AYES:
NOES:

ABSENT/ABSTAIN:

Londres Uso, President
Board of Directors
GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

ATTEST:

Steven Palmer, Clerk and ex officio
Secretary, Board of Directors
GEORGETOWN DiVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

GDPUD Resolution 2017-27 Authorizing Notice of Prop 218 Public Hearing Page 1of 2



CERTIFICATION

| hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of Resolution 2017-27 duly and
regularly adopted by the Board of Directors of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District, County of
El Dorado, State of California, on the 24th day of October 2017.

Steven Palmer, Clerk and ex officio
Secretary, Board of Directors
GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

GDPUD Resolution 2017-27 Authorizing Notice of Prop 218 Public Hearing Page 2 of 2



	2017.10.24_Final Rate Study Report.pdf
	Rate Study (1).pdf
	1. Georgetown Divide PUD
	Community
	District
	Customers
	Current Rates
	Funding of this report
	Disclaimer

	2. Guiding Principles of this Rate Study
	Sustainability
	Fair
	Justifiable
	Purpose of this study
	The Model
	Board Decision

	3.  Rate Study Process
	4. Capital Replacement Program
	Source of the Data
	Split Criteria of Assets
	Life Expectancy of Assets
	Sources of Funding
	Existing Reserves
	Description of Exhibit 1T and 1I
	Alternative

	5. Budget
	Board Member Analysis Request (Board Scenario)3F
	Analysis of the Board Scenario
	Source off Data4F
	Reserve Funding
	Treated Water
	Irrigation Water

	Allocation of Property Taxes
	Board Scenario
	Recommended Scenario

	Reserve Accounting and Investment Opportunities

	5. Rate Calculation
	A. Board Scenario
	Treated Water
	Irrigation Water

	B. Recommended Scenario
	Treated Water
	Irrigation Water

	C. Discussion of Scenarios

	7. Next Step
	Start the process
	Hearing
	Implementation

	8. Exhibits
	Exhibit 1T CRP.pdf
	2 Reserves

	Exhibit 1I CRP.pdf
	2 Reserves

	Exhibit 2T Budget.pdf
	3 Budget

	Exhibit 2I Budget.pdf
	3 Budget

	Exhibit 3TBudget.pdf
	3 Budget

	Exhibit 3I Budget.pdf
	3 Budget

	Exhibit 4 Cash & Investment Split.pdf
	Reserve Split






